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Certification Pursuant to Section 302(a)
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Management’s discussion and analysis reviews the consolidated financial condition of Camden National Corporation
(the “Company”) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, the consolidated results of operations for the past 3 years 
and, where appropriate, factors that may affect future financial performance. This discussion should be read in 
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Selected
Consolidated Financial Data.

Forward-Looking Information

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking statements.
Certain information contained in this discussion, or in any other written or oral statements made by the Company, 
is or may be considered to be forward-looking. Forward-looking statements relate to future operations, strategies,
financial results or other developments, and typically contain words or phrases such as “may,” “believe,” “expects,”
“should” or similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are based upon estimates and assumptions that are
subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Company’s
control or are subject to change. 

Inherent in the Company’s business are certain risks and uncertainties. Therefore, the Company cautions the reader
that its actual results could differ materially from those expected to occur depending on factors such as economic
conditions in local markets as well as general economic conditions, including changes in interest rates and the 
performance of financial markets, changes in domestic and foreign laws, regulations and taxes, competition, 
industry consolidation, credit risks and other factors. Other factors that could cause or contribute to such 
differences include, but are not limited to, variances in the actual versus projected growth in assets, return on
assets, loan losses, expenses, rates charged on loans and earned on investment securities, rates paid on deposits,
competitive effects, fee and other non-interest income earned, as well as other factors. The Company disclaims 
any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future developments, or otherwise.

GENERAL

Overview

Camden National Corporation (the “Company”), with $1.2
billion in assets, is a multi-bank and financial services holding
company located in Camden, Maine. The Company provides
commercial and consumer banking services in its 28 branch
locations, through its two bank subsidiaries, Camden National
Bank and UnitedKingfield Bank. It also provides brokerage and
insurances services through Acadia Financial Consultants,
which operates as a division of the two banking subsidiaries.
The Company also provides wealth management services and
employee benefit administration through its other subsidiary
Acadia Trust, N.A., which is located in Portland and Bangor,
Maine. In addition to serving as a holding company, the
Company provides managerial, operational and technology
services to its subsidiaries. These services include general
management, financial management, risk management and
bank operations.

The Company’s two banking subsidiaries conduct
operations throughout eastern, central, western, southern and
mid-coast Maine. As a result, the Company has a presence in
the State’s three largest markets (Portland, Lewiston and
Bangor), as well as in the State’s fastest growing area, York
County. During 2002, Camden National Bank opened a branch
location in Kennebunk, Maine as part of its expansion into 
York County.

Acadia Trust, N.A. has locations in Portland and Bangor
and provides wealth management and employee benefit
services to clients in those areas, as well as in other states. 
As of January 1, 2003, Acadia Trust, N.A. merged with Trust
Company of Maine, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Acadia Trust, N.A. remained as the surviving
entity. In addition to acquiring customers through its separate
marketing efforts, Acadia Trust, N.A. provides services to
clients of the Company’s banking subsidiaries.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis which follows focuses on 
the factors affecting the Company’s consolidated results of
operations during 2002, 2001 and 2000 and financial condition
at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
beginning on page 40 of this report should be read in
conjunction with this review.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Management’s discussion and analysis of the Company’s
financial condition are based on the consolidated financial
statements which are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The
preparation of such financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
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I, Robert W. Daigle, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Camden
National Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light 
of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, 
the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible 
for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 
15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in
this annual report whether or not there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly
affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date:  March 26, 2003

Robert W. Daigle
President & Chief Executive Officer 

I, Gregory A. Dufour, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Camden
National Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light 
of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, 
the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible 
for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 
15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in
this annual report whether or not there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly
affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date:  March 26, 2003

Gregory A. Dufour
Senior Vice President – Finance, Operations & Technology
Principal Financial Officer

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Hermon
Bangor

Hampden

Union
Rockland

Thomaston

Camden

Vinalhaven



Camden National Corporation and Subsidiaries 23

Consolidated Statements of Condition

for three primary reasons. First, interest earned from earning
assets and expenses from interest bearing deposits and
borrowings fluctuate due to changes in interest rates. This is
referred to as the “yield” or “rate” component of net interest
income. Second, net interest income changes due to the
amount of earning assets the Company maintains as well as the
amount of non-interest bearing deposits and borrowings the
Company holds. This is referred to as the “volume” component
of net interest income. Finally, net interest income fluctuates as
a result of the change over time in the components of earning
assets and non-interest bearing deposits, interest bearing

deposits and borrowings. This is referred to as the “mix”
component of net interest income. It is the Company’s goal to
ultimately maximize net interest income by providing competitive
products to its customers that, within various risk parameters,
maximize interest income while minimizing interest expense.
Management uses several analytical models, such as the tables
presented on pages 24 and 25, to assess and monitor these
factors that affect net interest income and to assess the
Company’s performance in meeting its goals and to determine
future strategies.  
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amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an
ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates, including
those related to the allowance for loan losses and accounting
for acquisitions and the related review of goodwill and
intangible assets for impairment. Management bases its
estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis in making
judgments about the carrying values of assets that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ
from the amount derived from management’s estimates under
different assumptions or conditions. 

Management believes the allowance for loan losses
(“ALL”) is a critical accounting policy that requires the most
significant estimates and assumptions used in the preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements. The ALL is based on
management’s evaluation of the level of the allowance required
in relation to the estimated loss exposure in the loan portfolio.
Management regularly evaluates the ALL for adequacy by
taking into consideration factors such as prior loan loss
experience, the character and size of the loan portfolio,
business and economic conditions and management’s
estimation of probable losses. The use of different estimates 
or assumptions could produce different provisions for loan
losses. Please see “Allowance for Loan Losses/Provisions 
for Loan Losses” and “Certain Factors Affecting Future
Operating Results—Our Allowance for Loan Losses may not be
adequate to cover actual loan losses” for more information.

Periodically the Company acquires property in connection
with foreclosures or in satisfaction of debt previously
contracted. The valuation of this property is accounted for
individually at the lower of the “book value of the loan
satisfied” or its net realizable value on the date of acquisition.
At the time of acquisition, any excess in the book value of the
loan satisfied over the net realizable value of the property is
charged against the ALL. If the value of the property becomes
permanently impaired, as determined by an appraisal or an
evaluation in accordance with the Company’s appraisal policy,
the Company will record the decline by showing a charge
against current earnings. Upon acquisition of a property valued
at $25,000 or more, a current appraisal or a broker’s opinion
must substantiate “market value” for the property.

Management utilizes numerous techniques to estimate 
the value of various assets held by the Company. As previously
discussed, management utilized various methods to determine
the appropriate carrying value of goodwill as required under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142.
In addition, goodwill from a purchase acquisition is subject to
ongoing periodic impairment tests. Goodwill is evaluated for
impairment using several standard valuation techniques
including discounted cash flow analyses, as well as an

estimation of the impact of business conditions. Different
estimates or assumptions are also utilized to determine the
appropriate carrying value of other assets including, but not
limited to, property, plant and equipment, mortgage servicing
rights, overall collectibility of loans and receivables. The use 
of different estimates or assumptions could produce different
estimates of carrying value.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Summary Financial Overview

The Company reported net income after the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting for goodwill (“SFAS No. 142”)
of $17.0 million, or $2.11 per diluted share, for 2002 compared
to $15.4 million and $1.89 per diluted share in 2001. The
improved results were attributable to increases of 6.1% 
and 10.4% in net interest income and non-interest income
respectively, over 2001, including a gain on the sale of the
Company’s merchant business credit card product during 
2002, which were partially offset by an increase of 4.2% in
non-interest expenses and the previously mentioned SFAS No.
142 adjustment. Return on average assets was 1.48% in 2002
compared to 1.47% in 2001 and return on average shareholders’
equity was 15.38% in 2002 compared to 15.55% in 2001. The
slight increase in return on average assets was primarily due 
to growth in both the loan and investment portfolios resulting 
in increased net interest income and non-interest income. 
The decline in return on average equity was primarily due to
increased retained earnings and the increase in the fair value 
of securities available for sale and derivative instruments,
which resulted in higher levels of equity.

The Company’s consolidated provision for loan losses 
was $3.1 million during 2002 compared to $3.7 million in
2001. This resulted in the Company increasing its ratio of 
ALL to total loans from 1.87% in 2001 to 1.88% in 2002. 
Non-performing assets, defined as non-accrual loans, accruing
loans 90 days or more past due, and other real estate owned,
increased from $8.3 million in 2001 to $8.8 million in 2002,
however, as a percentage of total loans outstanding non-
performing assets actually decreased during 2002 due to the
growth in the loan portfolio. Non-performing assets to total
loans was 1.09% at December 31, 2002 compared to 1.14% 
at December 31, 2001. 

Net Interest Income

Net interest income accounted for 76.4% of total revenues
for the Company, and is the Company’s largest source of
revenue. Net interest income reflects revenues generated
through income from earning assets plus loan fees, less interest
paid on interest bearing deposits and borrowings. Net interest
income was $47.2 million on a fully-taxable equivalent basis in
2002 compared to $44.7 million in 2001, an increase of 5.6%.
The Company’s level of net interest income fluctuates over time
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Analysis of Volume and Rate Changes on Net Interest Income

DECEMBER 31, 2002 VS 2001 DECEMBER 31, 2001 VS 2000
(Dollars in thousands) INCREASE (DECREASE) DUE TO INCREASE (DECREASE) DUE TO

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest-earning assets:

Securities—taxable $3,832 $ (2,039) $ 1,793 $   725 $(1,138) $ (413)
Securities—nontaxable (14) (13) (27) 11 (17) (6)
Federal funds sold 301 (134) 167 58 (84) (26)
Loans 2,176  (9,871)  (7,695)   5,238   (4,073)    1,165

Total interest income 6,295  (12,057)  (5,762)   6,032   (5,312)      720

Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW accounts 37  (369) (332) 55 (211) (156)
Savings accounts 169 (1,000) (831) (31) (491) (522)
Money market accounts 935 (2,871) (1,936) 1,339 (1,473) (134)
Certificates of deposit (603) (4,564) (5,167) (460) (2,124) (2,584)
Broker certificates of deposit 1,293 (832) 461 1,602 (413) 1,189
Borrowings 1,235    (1,756)    (521)      60   (1,828)  (1,768)

Total interest expense 3,066  (11,392)  (8,326)   2,565   (6,540)  (3,975)

Net interest income
(fully-taxable equivalent) $3,229 $    (665) $ 2,564 $3,467 $  1,228 $ 4,695

The Company reported increased net interest income on 
a fully-taxable equivalent basis of $47.2 million during 2002
compared to $44.7 million in 2001 due to changes in the yields,
volumes and mix of its interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. During 2002, overall interest rates in the
United States were at 40-year lows, as highlighted by a federal
funds discount rate of 1.25% at December 31, 2002. This
affected the Company’s net interest income in several ways.
First and foremost, the Company’s interest-bearing assets
which are contractually allowed to reprice based on various
benchmarks such as Prime Rate and the London Inter-Bank
Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) resulted in a reduction in gross revenues
(these products are also referred to as “variable” or “floating”
rate instruments) as these benchmarks declined in 2002.
Second, as a result of the historically low interest rate
environment and the Company operating in a highly competitive
marketplace, interest rates on new loans were also lower than
previously experienced. The Company was able to partially
compensate for the reduction in revenues due to these factors
by lowering the interest rate it paid on various deposit products.
Third, while amortization and pay-off of existing loans and
investments were experienced during the year, those funds were
either used to fund additional loans or reinvested in securities,
each of which earned lower rates of interest than in previous
years due to the historic low interest rate environment. Finally,
numerous customers refinanced to a lower interest rate various
debt obligations they had to the Company, which in turn lowered
the interest income the Company earned. Many fixed-rate
products the Company offers contain pre-payment penalties,
but other products, such as residential mortgages, do not.

Offsetting the effects of the interest rate environment 
was the fact that the Company generated additional loan
volume of $28.2 million through its previously announced
expansion into new markets and increased volume of activity 
in its other existing marketplaces. During 2002, residential
mortgages increased $39.9 million, or 19.5%, and consumer
loans (including home equities) increased  $9.9 million, or
11.5%, during 2002. The Company also benefited from revenues
from an interest rate swap agreement which was entered into 
in early 2002 as a hedge against falling interest rates. As rates
fell, revenues from the interest rate swap increased.

Investments in U.S. government securities, U.S.
government agency securities and highly rated corporate 
bonds are used by the Company to diversify its revenues as
well as provide interest rate risk and credit risk diversification.
The Company periodically uses interest rate swaps, floors and
caps, which are common derivative financial instruments, to
hedge interest rate risk associated with its loan and investment
portfolios as well as its deposit and borrowing strategies. 
Note 22, “Financial Instruments,” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, on page 59, and the “Market Risk”
section, on page 33, should be reviewed for further discussion
of the Company’s derivative and market risk strategies.

During 2002, interest income on the Company’s taxable
investment portfolio increased $1.8 million primarily due to 
the increase in volume in the portfolio, while the Company’s
non-taxable investment portfolio interest income declined
$27,000, due to both volume and rate declines in the portfolio.
During 2002 and 2001, the Company was a party to several

Analysis of Change in Net Interest Margin on Earning Assets

(Dollars in thousands) DECEMBER 31, 2002 DECEMBER 31, 2001 DECEMBER 31, 2000
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

Assets
Interest-earning assets:

Securities—taxable $   292,279 $17,459 5.97% $  234,835 $15,666 6.67% $224,698 $16,079 7.16%
Securities—nontaxable (1) 8,936 562 6.29% 9,161 589 6.43% 8,993 595 6.62%
Federal funds sold 15,729 250 1.59% 3,399 83 2.44% 2,215 109 4.92%
Loans (1)(2)(3)     757,733 55,370 7.31%  732,460   63,065 8.61%  675,316  62,007 9.17%

Total interest-earning assets 1,074,677  73,641 6.86%    979,855   79,403 8.10%  911,222  78,790 8.63%

Cash and due from banks 28,189 24,742 27,544
Other assets 63,565 57,874 58,817
Less allowance for loan losses 14,232     12,200    10,541

Total assets $1,152,199 $1,050,271 $987,042

Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:

NOW accounts $ 96,707 $     401 0.41% $  92,111 $  733 0.80% $ 86,783 $ 889 1.02%
Savings accounts 92,839 815 0.88% 84,201 1,646 1.95% 85,427 2,168 2.54%
Money market accounts 155,742 2,397 1.54% 128,106 4,333 3.38% 98,559 4,467 4.53%
Certificates of deposit 309,413 10,880 3.52% 321,503 16,047 4.98% 329,664 18,595 5.64%
Broker certificates of deposit 55,642 2,597 4.67% 34,659 2,136 6.16% 12,876 947 7.35%
Borrowings 224,659    9,325 4.15%   199,615    9,846 4.95%  198,597  11,650 5.87%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 935,002  26,415 2.83%   860,195   34,741 4.04%  811,906  38,716 4.77%

Demand deposits 95,824 82,572 84,357
Other liabilities 10,496 8,327 6,409
Shareholders’ equity 110,877       99,177    84,370

Total liabilities
and shareholders’ equity $1,152,199 $1,050,271 $987,042

Net interest income 47,226 44,662 40,074
(fully-taxable equivalent)

Less: fully-taxable 
equivalent adjustment (369)      (481)      (561)

Net interest income $46,857 $44,181 $39,513

Net interest rate spread
(fully-taxable equivalent) 4.03% 4.06% 3.87%

Net interest margin
(fully-taxable equivalent) 4.39% 4.56% 4.39%

(1) Reported on tax-equivalent basis calculated using a rate of 35%.
(2) Non-accrual loans are included in total average loans.
(3) Includes net interest income on interest swap agreements.
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Non-interest income increased $4.2 million from $8.9
million in 2000 to $13.1 million in 2001. The increase of
46.9%, in total non-interest income reflected the effects of
various balance sheet management activities which included
the securitization of $57.0 million of the Company’s residential
mortgages (i.e. the sale of residential mortgages purchased
back by the Company as mortgage-backed securities) and 
sales of various investments which resulted in $1.2 million of
non-interest income. In 2001, the Company also recognized
$932,000 from the sale of interest rate derivatives and
increased trust fees of $1.2 million due to the acquisition 
of Acadia Trust, N.A. on July 19, 2001. 

Non-interest expenses were $31.0 million in 2001,
compared to $25.4 million in 2000. Salaries and employee
benefits increased by $2.7 million, reflecting, in part, increased
salaries and employee benefits of $855,000 associated with the
Acadia Trust, N.A. acquisition. Occupancy expenses increased
$409,000 during 2001 compared to 2000 due to the renovation
and expansion of several of the Company’s branch facilities and
expansion of its operations center. Other expenses increased 
by $2.3 million due to expenses related to the Company’s new
subsidiaries, courier costs, legal settlement and debit card
processing costs.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Overview

Total assets at December 31, 2002 were $1.2 billion, an
increase of $129.1 million, or 11.8%, from December 31, 2001.
The change in assets consisted primarily of a $51.0 million
increase in investment securities, an increase in net loans of
$83.1 million, a decrease of $5.3 million in cash and due from
banks, a decrease in net premises and equipment of $700,000,
and an increase in other assets of $1.0 million. The asset
growth was supported by an increase of $28.0 million in total
borrowings, an $86.6 million increase in deposits, a $700,000
increase in other liabilities, and an increase of $13.8 million in
total shareholders’ equity. 

Investment Securities

The Company maintains an investment portfolio of various
securities to diversify its revenues, as well as provide interest
rate risk and credit risk diversification and to provide for its
liquidity and funding needs. Total investment securities increased
$51.0 million, or 19.3%, to $314.8 million at December 31,
2002. The Company has investment securities in both the
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories. During 2002,
the Company sold fixed rate residential mortgages which were
converted into mortgage-backed securities and purchased back
by the Company and are classified as securities available for
sale (also known as “securitization.”) These transactions
resulted in the Company’s loan balances decreasing, as those
assets shifted to investment securities. Converting residential

mortgages into mortgage-backed securities provides flexibility
and liquidity in the Company’s balance sheet. As a result of 
the securitization activity in 2002 and 2001, the Company
generated and maintained $73.7 million of mortgage-backed
securities through this program. This strategy reflects the fact
that mortgage backed securities are a more liquid investment
alternative to residential mortgages, thus allowing the Company
to provide its customers competitive residential mortgages
while maintaining adequate liquidity on its balance sheet. The
Company also purchases mortgage-backed securities and 
other investment securities as part of its overall investment
portfolio strategy.

The Company conforms to SFAS No. 115, which requires
all investments to be categorized as “trading securities,”
“available for sale” or “held to maturity.” All realized gains or
losses from investments in any category are recorded as an
effect to net income in the period incurred. Unrealized gains or
losses from investments are recorded based on its respective
classification. Unrealized gains or losses from investments
categorized as “trading securities” are immediately recorded in
the Company’s income statement. During 2002, the Company
did not hold any securities in this category. Unrealized gains or
losses from investments categorized as “held to maturity” are
only recorded when and if the gain or loss is recognized. In
most cases, due to the strict interpretation of this classification,
these securities are not sold. Unrealized gains or losses on
securities classified as “available for sale” are recorded as
adjustments to shareholders’ equity, net of related deferred
income taxes, and are a component of the Company’s other
comprehensive income contained in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. At December 31, 2002, the
Company had $6.8 million of unrealized gains on securities
available for sale, net of the deferred taxes, compared to $4.5
million of unrealized gains, net of deferred taxes at December 31,
2001. The increase in unrealized appreciation was attributed to a
decrease in market interest rates.

Loans

The Company’s bank subsidiaries provide loans to
customers primarily located within the banks’ geographic
market area. Loans, including loans held for sale, totaled
$808.9 million at December 31, 2002, an 11.7% increase 
from total loans of $724.0 million at December 31, 2001. This
reflects the continuation of strong loan growth experienced in
the commercial, residential real estate and consumer loan
portfolios, less the $52.1 million of fixed-rate residential
mortgage loans that were either sold on the secondary market
or converted to securities available for sale by the Company
during 2002.

Residential real estate mortgage loans increased by 
$39.9 million, or 19.5%, in 2002. During 2002, the Company
securitized $16.7 million of fixed-rate residential mortgage

interest rate swap agreements that were a component of the
Company’s strategy to protect a portion of its interest income
revenue stream against a changing interest rate environment.
These instruments contributed $597,000 to interest income in
2002 and $422,000 in 2001. Interest rate swap agreements
involve risks associated with counterparties to the agreements
and their abilities to meet the contractual terms of the
agreements, as well as risks associated with a changing
interest rate environment. Notional principal amounts are used
to reflect the volume of these transactions, but credit risks
associated with these agreements are limited to the forecasted
payment stream expected from counterparties. The Company’s
counterparties to these agreements had an investment grade
rating by Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s rating agencies.
These instruments involve only the exchange of fixed- and
variable-rate interest payments based upon a notional principal
amount and maturity date. At December 31, 2002, the
Company’s notional value of derivative financial instruments
was $30.0 million, compared to $90.0 million on December 31,
2001. Note 22, “Financial Instruments,” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, on page 59, should be
reviewed for further discussion of derivative instruments.

Non-interest Income

Non-interest income was $14.5 million and $13.1 million
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
This includes the $1.3 million gain from the sale of the
Company’s merchant business credit card product to NOVA
Information Systems during November 2002 (recorded in
“Other income”) and a gain of $932,000 realized from the 
sale of derivative instruments during 2001. Income from
deposit services increased $228,000 primarily due to volume
and fee increases related to transaction accounts. Other service
charges and fees declined $425,000 due to the acceleration of
the amortization of the capitalized mortgage servicing rights
asset, that is netted against servicing rights income, associated
with increased prepayments on previously sold residential real
estate loans that the Company services. Trust fees increased
$1.1 million, or 44.8%, during 2002 primarily due to the
acquisition of Acadia Trust, N.A. on July 19, 2001. Brokerage
and insurance commissions increased $222,000 as a result 
of the addition of Acadia Financial Consultants, the banks’ 
full-service brokerage and insurance sales division, during 
the fourth quarter of 2001.

Although increases were recorded in non-interest income
related to the Company’s financial services business lines, the
general stock market environment negatively impacted revenue.
Decreased market values of clients’ assets under management
resulted in lower management fees. In addition, it is the
Company’s belief that an overall negative investor sentiment
toward the stock market affected the Company’s ability to
attract and retain clients who use the Company’s investment
management services. Conversely, the Company believes the

impact of the existing stock market performance has benefited
the Company’s banking subsidiaries as disenchanted stock
market investors searched for safer investment opportunities
such as certificates of deposit, money market funds and other
bank products.

Non-interest Expenses

Non-interest expenses increased to $32.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from $31.0 million in 2001,
approximately $1.3 million, or 4.2%. Salaries and employee
benefits increased by $2.2 million, or 15.6%, during this same
period reflecting, in part, increased salaries and employee
benefits of $1.3 million associated with the Acadia Trust, N.A.
acquisition in July 2001 and establishment of Acadia Financial
Consultants in October 2001. In addition to this amount, there
was an increase of $821,000, or 6.5%, due to annual salary
increases and higher employee benefit costs. Occupancy
expenses increased $224,000, or 10.8%, due in part to the 
full year of Acadia Trust, N.A. and a new branch facility in
Kennebunk, Maine. Expenses associated with the processing 
of merchant business credit card transactions decreased
$183,000, or 9.2%, during 2002 compared to 2001 reflecting
the sale of the Company’s merchant program to NOVA
Information Systems effective in November 2002. Other expenses
decreased by $683,000, or 7.4%, in 2002 compared to 2001
primarily due to a legal settlement of $1.0 million paid in 2001.

Comparison of 2001 to 2000

The Company reported net income of $15.4 million or
$1.89 per diluted share in 2001 compared to $13.9 million or
$1.69 per diluted share in 2000. Return on average assets was
1.47% in 2001 compared to 1.40% in 2000, while return on
average shareholders’ equity was 15.55% in 2001 compared 
to 16.43% in 2000. This performance primarily reflected 
loan growth from the Company’s Portland, Maine location,
expansion of fee based revenues from its banking subsidiaries,
revenues from its acquired investment management subsidiary,
and control of its operating expenses. On February 4, 2000,
Kingfield Savings Bank and the Company’s United Bank
subsidiary were merged to create UnitedKingfield Bank.

Net interest income on a fully-taxable equivalent basis 
was $44.7 million in 2001 compared to $40.0 million in 2000.
During 2001, the Company benefited from the declining interest
rate environment as expenses on interest-bearing liabilities
decreased faster than income received on interest-earning assets.

The Company reported $3.7 million of provision for 
loan losses in 2001 compared to $2.9 million in 2000. The
allowance for loan losses increased from 1.54% of total loans
at the end of 2000 to 1.87% at the end of 2001. The reserve
was increased in response to management’s view of probable
economic deterioration in its central, eastern and western
Maine geographic markets.
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Five-Year Activity in the Allowance for Loan Losses

(Dollars in thousands) YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Allowance at the beginning of period $  13,514 $  10,801 $    9,390 $ 8,092 $    6,982
Provision for loan losses 3,080 3,681 2,930 3,670 2,056
Charge-offs:

Commercial loans 1,034 536 1,296 1,520 417
Residential real estate loans 678 552 432 715 415
Consumer loans 378      461        417         425       444

Total loan charge-offs 2,090 1,549 2,145 2,660 1,276

Recoveries:
Commercial loans 212 324 421 64 158
Residential real estate loans 311 64 29 54 35
Consumer loans     215   193   176         170       137

Total loan recoveries 738 581 626 288 330

Net charge-offs 1,352 968 1,519      2,372      946

Allowance at the end of the period $  15,242 $  13,514 $  10,801 $    9,390 $    8,092

Average loans outstanding $757,733 $732,460 $675,316 $605,271 $521,559

Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.18% 0.13% 0.22% 0.39% 0.18%
Ratio of provision for loan losses 

to average loans outstanding 0.41% 0.50% 0.43% 0.61% 0.39%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses 

to total loans at end of period 1.88% 1.87% 1.54% 1.48% 1.42%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to net charge-offs 1127.37% 1396.07% 711.06% 395.87% 855.39%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses

to non-performing loans at end of period 183.64% 167.46% 166.48% 148.32% 172.50%

loans into mortgage-backed securities, which are classified 
as securities available for sale. In addition, the Company
originated and sold $35.4 million of fixed-rate residential
mortgage loans on the secondary market. Residential real
estate mortgage loans decreased by $18.8 million, or 8.4%, 
in 2001. During 2001, the Company securitized $57.0 million 
of fixed-rate residential mortgages loans into mortgage-backed
securities, which are classified as securities available for sale.
These transactions resulted in the Company’s loan balances
decreasing, as those assets shifted to investment securities.
The Company will receive annual servicing fees as compensation
for servicing the outstanding balances. These loans were sold
to Freddie Mac without recourse, which means Freddie Mac
assumes the risk of loss from borrower defaults subject to the
terms and conditions of the purchase documents. Residential
real estate loans consist of loans secured by one-to-four family
residences. The Company generally retains adjustable-rate
mortgages in its portfolio and will, from time to time, retain
fixed-rate mortgages. With a relatively low interest rate
environment, the Company’s asset/liability strategy during 
2002 was to keep a portion of its fixed-rate residential
mortgages in its loan portfolio.

Commercial loans consist of loans secured by various
corporate assets, as well as loans to provide working capital in
the form of lines of credit, which may be secured or unsecured
and includes commercial real estate loans secured by income
producing commercial real estate. The Company focuses on
lending to financially sound small- and medium-sized business
customers within its geographic marketplace as well as offering
loans for the acquisition, development and construction of
commercial real estate. Commercial loans increased by $37.9
million, or 9.0%, during 2002. In 2001, commercial loans
increased by $59.7 million, or 16.4%, over the prior year.

Consumer loans are originated by the Company for a 
wide variety of purposes to meet customers’ needs. Consumer
loans include credit card, overdraft protection, automobile,
boat, recreation vehicles, mobile homes, home equity, and
secured and unsecured personal loans. Consumer loans
increased by $9.9 million, or 11.5%, in 2002 as a result of
consumers taking advantage of the continued low interest rate
environment and utilizing home equity loans to consolidate
debt and make home improvements. In 2001, consumer loans
decreased by $3.9 million, or 4.3%, from the prior year.

The Company’s policy is to discontinue the accrual of
interest on loans when, in the opinion of management, there 
is an indication that the borrower may be unable to meet
payments as they become due. When a loan is placed on 
“non-accrual” status, all payments received from the customer
are applied to outstanding loan principal first and accrued
interest receivable once the principal obligation has been
satisfied. If, in the opinion of management, a loan on non-accrual

is determined to be creditworthy, it may be placed back on
accrual status. Payments received on loans that are returned 
to accrual status are recorded from that time forward to the
appropriate interest income and principal reduction categories.
Non-performing loans, defined as non-accrual loans plus
accruing loans 90 days or more past due, totaled $8.3 million,
or 1.0%, of total loans at December 31, 2002 compared to $8.1
million, or 1.1%, of total loans at December 31, 2001. 

Allowance for Loan Losses / Provision for Loan Losses

In determining the adequacy of the ALL, management
reviews the loan portfolio both to ascertain whether there are
specific loans to be reserved against, and to assess the
collectibility of the loan portfolio in the aggregate. Non-
performing loans are examined on an individual basis to
determine the estimated probable loss on these loans. In
addition, the ongoing evaluation process includes a formal
analysis of the ALL each quarter, which considers, among other
factors, the current loan mix and loan volumes, loan growth,
delinquency trends, historical net loan loss experience for each
loan category, and business and economic conditions affecting
each loan category. Although management uses available
information to establish the appropriate level of the ALL, no
assurance can be given, however, that adverse economic
conditions or other circumstances will not result in increased
losses in the portfolio. The Company continues to monitor and
modify its ALL as conditions dictate (see Note 8, “Allowance
for Loan Losses,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, on page 52, for further information).

During 2002, the Company recognized $3.1 million of
expense to the allowance for loan losses compared to $3.7
million and $2.9 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Provisions are made to the ALL in order to maintain the 
ALL at a level which management believes is reasonable 
and reflective of the overall risk of loss inherent in the loan
portfolio. Accordingly, the provision decreased from $3.7 
million in 2001 to $3.1 million in 2002. Net charge-offs to
average loans outstanding were 0.18% in 2002 compared to
0.13% in 2001. A continued softening of the economy in the
central and western Maine markets had an adverse impact 
on asset quality during the first half of 2002. Determining an
appropriate level of ALL involves a high degree of judgment.
Management believes that the ALL at December 31, 2002 
of $15.2 million, or 1.88%, of total loans outstanding was
appropriate given the current economic conditions in the
Company’s service area and the overall condition of the loan
portfolio. As a percentage of total loans outstanding, the ALL
was 1.87% in 2001.

The table on the next page sets forth information
concerning the activity in the Company’s ALL during the
periods indicated.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party
to credit related financial instruments with off-balance sheet
risk, which are not reflected in the Consolidated Statements 
of Condition. These financial instruments include lending
commitments and letters of credit. Those instruments involve
varying degrees of credit risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Condition.

The Company follows the same credit policies in making
commitments to extend credit and conditional obligations as 
it does for on-balance sheet instruments, including requiring
similar collateral or other security to support financial
instruments with credit risk. The Company’s exposure to 
credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the customer 
is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.
Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without
being drawn upon, the total amount does not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. At December 31, 2002, 
the Company had the following levels of commitments to
extend credit.

Total Amount Commitment Expires in:
Committed <1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years >5 years

(Dollars in thousand)

Letters of Credit $ 1,892 $ 992 $  900 $  – $ –

Other Commitments
to Extend Credit  146,395  47,360   29,743  4,333  64,959

Total $148,287 $48,352 $30,643 $4,333 $64,959

The Company is a party to several off-balance sheet
contractual obligations through lease agreements on a 
number of branch facilities. The Company has an obligation 
and commitment to make future payments under these
contracts. These commitments and the related payments 
are made during the normal course of business. At 
December 31, 2002, the Company had the following levels 
of contractual obligations.

Total Amount Payments Due Per Period
of Obligations  <1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years >5 years

(Dollars in thousand)

Operating Leases $2,728 $  545 $1,149 $ 252 $  782

Capital Leases – – – – –

Long-Term Debt – – – – –

Other Long-Term
Obligations  –     –    –       – –

Total $2,728 $  545 $1,149 $  252 $  782

The Company uses derivative instruments as partial hedges
against large fluctuations in interest rates. The Company uses
interest rate swap and floor instruments to partially hedge
against potentially lower yields on the variable prime rate loan
category in a declining rate environment. If rates were to decline,
resulting in reduced income on the adjustable rate loans, there
would be an increased income flow from the interest rate swap
and floor instruments. The Company also uses cap instruments 
to partially hedge against increases in short-term borrowing
rates. If rates were to rise, resulting in an increased interest
cost, there would be an increased income flow from the cap
instruments. These financial instruments are factored into the
Company’s overall interest rate risk position. The Company
regularly reviews the credit quality of the counterparty from
which the instruments have been purchased. At December 31,
2002, the Company had swap agreements with a notional
amount of $30 million with the following cash flows.

Payments Due Per Period
<1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years >5 years

(Dollars in thousand)

Fixed Payments
from Counterparty $2,070 $2,243 $      –      $  –

Payments based
on Prime Rate 1,275 1,381       –    –

Net Cash Flow $   795 $   862 $      – $     –

The net cash flow reflected on the table above is based 
on the current rate environment. The Company receives a fixed
6.9% on the notional amount during the contract period from
the counterparty on the swap agreements and pays a variable
rate based on the prime rate, which is currently at 4.25%. The
cash flow will remain positive for the Company as long as the
prime rate remains below 6.9%. This derivative instrument 
was put into place to partially hedge against potential lower
yields on the variable prime rate loan category in a declining
rate environment. If the prime rate increases, the Company 
will experience a reduction of cash flow from this derivative
instrument that will be offset by an increase in cash flow 
for the variable prime rate loans. 

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity is defined as the ability to meet current and
future financial obligations. The primary objective of liquidity
management is to maintain a balance between sources and
uses of funds to meet the cash flow needs of the Company in
the most economical and expedient manner. The liquidity needs
of the Company require the availability of cash to meet the
withdrawal demands of depositors and credit commitments to
borrowers. Due to the potential for unexpected fluctuations in
both deposits and loans, active management of the Company’s
liquidity is necessary. The Company maintains various sources
of funding and levels of liquid assets in excess of regulatory
guidelines in order to satisfy its varied liquidity demands. The
Company monitors its liquidity in accordance with its internal
guidelines and all applicable regulatory requirements. As of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company’s level of liquidity
exceeded its target levels. Management believes that the
Company currently has appropriate liquidity available to
respond to liquidity demands. Sources of funds utilized by the
Company consist of deposits, borrowings from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston (“FHLBB”) and other sources, cash flows
from operations, prepayments and maturities of outstanding
loans, investments and mortgage-backed securities, and the
sales of mortgage loans. 

Deposits continue to represent the Company’s primary
source of funds. In 2002, total deposits increased by $86.6
million, or 11.3%, over 2001, ending the year at $850.1 million.
The Company experienced growth in all deposit categories in
2002. Comparing year-end balances 2002 to 2001, money
market accounts increased by $35.1 million, certificates of
deposit by $20.8 million, transaction accounts (demand
deposits and NOW) by $20.6 million, and savings accounts 

by $10.0 million. In 2001, total deposits increased by $19.2
million, or 2.6%, over 2000, ending the year at $763.6 million.
Borrowings supplement deposits as a source of liquidity. In
addition to borrowings from the FHLBB, the Company
purchases federal funds, sells securities under agreements 
to repurchase, and utilizes treasury tax and loan accounts. 
Total borrowings were $238.8 million at December 31, 2002
compared to $210.8 million at December 31, 2001, an increase
of $28.0 million, or 13.3%. The majority of the borrowings
were from the FHLBB, whose advances remained the largest
non-deposit-related, interest-bearing funding source for the
Company. Qualified residential real estate loans, certain
investment securities and certain other assets available to be
pledged secure these borrowings. The carrying value of loans
pledged as collateral at the FHLBB was $236.3 million and
$194.6 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The Company also pledges securities as collateral at the FHLBB
depending on its borrowing needs. The Company, through its
bank subsidiaries, has an available line of credit with FHLBB of
$13.0 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Company
had no outstanding balance on its line of credit with the FHLBB
at December 31, 2002 or 2001.

In addition to the liquidity sources discussed above, the
Company believes the investment portfolio and residential loan
portfolio provide a significant amount of contingent liquidity
that could be accessed in a reasonable time period through
sales. The Company also believes that it has significant
untapped access to the national brokered deposit market. 
These sources are considered as liquidity alternatives in the
Company’s contingent liquidity plan. The Company believes 
that the level of liquidity is sufficient to meet current and future
funding requirements.

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses—Five-Year Schedule

(Dollars in thousands) AS OF DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of
loans in loans in loans in loans in loans in

each each each each each
category to category to category to category to category to

Balance at End of Period Applicable to: Amount total loans Amount total loans Amount total loans Amount total loans Amount total loans

Commercial loans $12,418 58% $11,079 60% $  5,972 55% $5,286 52% $4,288 51%
Residential real estate loans 1,395 30% 1,068 28% 2,329 32% 2,772 35% 2,166 35%
Consumer loans 1,256 12% 1,084 12% 1,218 13% 475 13% 729 14%
Unallocated  173  N/A      283  N/A  1,282   N/A     857   N/A    909   N/A

$15,242 100% $13,514 100% $10,801 100% $9,390 100% $8,092 100%

The allowance for loan losses is available to offset credit
losses in connection with any loan, but is internally allocated to
various loan categories as part of the Company’s process for

evaluating its adequacy. The following table sets forth
information concerning the allocation of the Company’s 
ALL by loan categories at the dates indicated.
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Unlike many industrial companies, substantially all of the
assets and virtually all of the liabilities of the Company are
monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a more
significant impact on the Company’s performance than the
general level of inflation. Over short periods of time, interest
rates and yield curve may not necessarily move in the same
direction or in the same magnitude as inflation.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss in a financial instrument
arising from adverse changes in market rates/prices, such as
interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity
prices and equity prices. The Company’s primary market risk
exposure is interest rate risk. The ongoing monitoring and
management of this risk is an important component of the
Company’s asset/liability management process, which is
governed by policies established by the subsidiaries’ Boards of
Directors that are reviewed and approved annually. Each bank
subsidiary’s Board of Directors’ Asset/Liability Committee
(“Board ALCO”) delegates responsibility for carrying out the
asset/liability management policies to Company’s Management
Asset/Liability Committee (“Management ALCO”). In this
capacity, Management ALCO develops guidelines and strategies
impacting the Company’s asset/liability management-related
activities based upon estimated market risk sensitivity, policy
limits and overall market interest rate levels/trends. The
Management ALCO and Board ALCO jointly meet on a quarterly
basis to review strategies, policies, economic conditions and
various activities as part of the management of these risks.

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk represents the sensitivity of earnings 
to changes in market interest rates. As interest rates change,
the interest income and expense streams associated with 
the Company’s financial instruments also change, thereby
impacting net interest income (“NII”), the primary component
of the Company’s earnings. Board and Management ALCO
utilize the results of a detailed and dynamic simulation model
to quantify the estimated exposure of NII to sustained interest
rate changes. While Board and Management ALCO routinely
monitor simulated NII sensitivity over a rolling 2-year horizon,
they also utilize additional tools to monitor potential longer-term
interest rate risk.

The simulation model captures the impact of changing
interest rates on the interest income received and interest
expense paid on all interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities reflected on the Company’s balance sheet as well as
for derivative financial instruments. None of the assets used in
the simulation were held for trading purposes. This sensitivity
analysis is compared to ALCO policy limits which specify a
maximum tolerance level for NII exposure over a 1-year
horizon, assuming no balance sheet growth, given a 200 basis

point (“bp”) upward and 100 bp downward shift in interest
rates for 2002 and both a 200 bp upward and downward shift
in interest rates for 2001. A parallel and pro rata shift in rates
over a 12-month period is assumed. The following reflects the
Company’s NII sensitivity analysis as measured periodically
over the past 2 years.

2002

Estimated
Rate Change Changes in NII

High Low Average

+200 bp 4.76% 0.92% 2.79%
-100 bp (3.57%) (3.22%) (3.40%)

2001

Estimated
Rate Change Changes in NII

High Low Average

+200 bp (4.31%) 0.95% (1.80%)
-200 bp 2.14% (0.24%) 0.79%

The preceding sensitivity analysis does not represent a
Company forecast and should not be relied upon as being
indicative of expected operating results. These hypothetical
estimates are based upon numerous assumptions including,
among others, the nature and timing of interest rate levels,
yield curve shape, prepayments on loans and securities,
deposit decay rates, pricing decisions on loans and deposits,
and reinvestment/replacement of asset and liability cash flows.
While assumptions are developed based upon current economic
and local market conditions, the Company cannot make any
assurances as to the predictive nature of these assumptions,
including how customer preferences or competitor influences
might change.

The most significant factors affecting the changes in
market risk exposure during 2002 compared to 2001 were the
continued low interest rate environment, the increase in the
aggregate principal amount in fixed-rate loans extended by 
the subsidiary banks, and the increase of fixed-rate FHLBB
borrowings. Increases in fixed-rate loans and borrowings
resulted in reducing the Company’s opportunity to lower
funding costs in a declining rate environment. The Company
decreased its exposure in a rising rate environment by locking
in fixed-rate borrowings, while increasing its market risk in
both a flat or declining interest rate environment. The increased
risk in the flat or declining interest rate environment is well
within the Company’s policy limits.

When appropriate, the Company may utilize derivative
financial instruments, such as interest rate floors, caps and
swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk position. The Board of
Directors’ approved hedging policy statements governing the

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Under Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”) guidelines, 
bank holding companies such as the Company are required 
to maintain capital based on risk-adjusted assets. These 
capital requirements represent quantitative measures of the
Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet 
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. 
The Company’s capital classification is also subject to
qualitative judgments by its regulators about components, 
risk weightings and other factors. Quantitative measures
established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require 
the Company to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of 
total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital to average
assets (as defined). These guidelines apply to the Company 
on a consolidated basis. Under the current guidelines, banking
organizations must maintain a risk-based capital ratio of 8.0%,
of which at least 4.0% must be in the form of core capital 
(as defined). The risk-based ratios of the Company and its
subsidiaries exceeded regulatory guidelines at December 31,
2002 and December 31, 2001. The Company’s Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets was 12.6% and 12.9% at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively (see Note 23, “Regulatory Matters,”
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, on page 61,
for other capital ratios). In addition to risk-based capital
requirements, the FRB requires bank holding companies to
maintain a minimum leverage capital ratio of core capital to
total assets of 4.0%. Total assets for this purpose do not include
goodwill and any other intangible assets and investments that
the FRB determines should be deducted. The Company’s
leverage ratio at December 31, 2002 and 2001 was 8.7%.

As part of the Company’s goal to operate a safe, sound
and profitable financial organization, the Company is committed
to maintaining a strong capital base. Shareholders’ equity
totaled $118.8 million and $105.0 million, or 9.8% and 9.6%,
of total assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The $13.8 million, or 13.1%, increase in shareholders’ equity in
2002 was primarily attributable to net income of $17.0 million,
less the costs associated with open market repurchases of
approximately $0.9 million of the Company’s common stock 
in compliance with the Company’s previously announced stock
repurchase policy and $5.5 million in cash dividends to the
Company’s shareholders, plus $3.2 million in unrealized gains
on securities available for sale and derivative instruments, net
of deferred tax expense.

The principal cash requirement of the Company is the
payment of dividends on the Company’s common stock as and
when declared by the Board of Directors. Dividends paid per
share during the year ended December 31, 2002 increased by
6.2% over the corresponding period in 2001. The Company is
primarily dependent upon the payment of cash dividends by its
subsidiaries to service its commitments. The Company, as the

sole shareholder of its subsidiaries, is entitled to dividends
when and as declared by each subsidiary’s Board of Directors
from legally available funds. Camden National Bank declared
dividends in the aggregate amount of $6.5 million and $11.5
million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. UnitedKingfield Bank
declared dividends in the aggregate amount of $1.5 million and
$3.3 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 31,
2002, and subject to the limitations and restrictions under
applicable law, Camden National Bank and UnitedKingfield Bank
had a total of $13.9 million available for dividends to the
Company, although there is no assurance that dividends will 
be paid at any time in any amount (see Note 17, “Shareholders’
Equity,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, on
page 56, for additional information).

On June 25, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company
voted to authorize the Company to purchase up to 409,500
shares, or approximately 5% of its outstanding common stock.
The authority may be exercised from time to time and in such
amounts as market conditions warrant. Any purchases are
intended to make appropriate adjustments to the Company’s
capital structure, including meeting share requirements related
to employee benefit plans and for general corporate purposes.
As of December 31, 2002, the Company has repurchased
37,950 shares of common stock at an average price of $24.21
under this plan.

Effective August 27, 2002, the Company elected to 
adopt a fair value-based method of accounting for employee
stock compensation plans prospectively and expense the
compensation costs over the vesting period of the options in
accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” In prior periods the Company disclosed in 
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the pro forma
effect on net income of compensation costs based on the fair
value of the options at the grant dates consistent with SFAS 
No. 123. SFAS No. 123 allows an entity to continue to measure
compensation cost for those plans using the intrinsic value-
based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for 
Stock Issued to Employees,” whereby compensation cost is 
the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock at 
the grant date (or other measurement date) over the amount 
an employee must pay to acquire the stock. The Company did
not grant any options during 2002.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere herein
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, which require the
measurement of financial position and operating results in
terms of historical dollars without considering changes in the
relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation.
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Information concerning restrictions on the ability of the
Company’s subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Company in
the form of cash dividends is described in the Capital
Resources section on page 32.

As of December 31, 2002, there were 8,027,374 shares of
the Company’s common stock outstanding, held of record by
approximately 960 shareholders.

CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING
FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS

Interest rate volatility may reduce our profitability.

The profitability of the Company depends to a large extent
upon net interest income, which is the difference between
interest income on interest-earning assets, such as loans and
investments, and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities,
such as deposits and borrowed funds.

Net interest income can be affected significantly by changes
in market interest rates. In particular, changes in relative interest
rates may reduce the Company’s net interest income as the
difference between interest income and interest expense
decreases. As a result, the Company has adopted asset and
liability management policies to minimize the potential adverse
effects of changes in interest rates on net interest income,
primarily by altering the mix and maturity of loans, investments
and funding sources.

However, there can be no assurance that a decrease in
interest rates will not negatively impact the Company’s results
from operations or financial position. Since market interest
rates may change by differing magnitudes and at different
times, significant changes in interest rates over an extended
period of time could reduce overall net interest income. An
increase in interest rates could also have a negative impact on
the Company’s results of operations by reducing the ability of
borrowers to repay their current loan obligations, which could
not only result in increased loan defaults, foreclosures and
write-offs, but also necessitate further increases to the
Company’s allowance for loan losses.

Our Allowance for Loan Losses may not be adequate 
to cover actual loan losses.

The Company makes various assumptions and judgments
about the collectibility of the loan portfolio and provides an
allowance for potential losses based on a number of factors. 
If the assumptions are wrong, the allowance for loan losses
may not be sufficient to cover the losses the Company could
experience, which would have an adverse effect on operating
results, and may also cause the Company to increase the
allowance in the future. Further, the Company’s net income
would decrease if additional amounts needed to be provided to 
the allowance for loan losses.

Our loans are concentrated in certain areas of Maine 
and adverse conditions in those markets could adversely
affect our operations.

The Company is exposed to real estate and economic
factors in the central, southern, western and midcoast areas 
of Maine, as virtually all of the loan portfolio is concentrated
among borrowers in these markets. Further, because a
substantial portion of the loan portfolio is secured by real
estate in this area, the value of the associated collateral is 
also subject to regional real estate market conditions. Adverse
economic, political or business developments or natural
hazards may affect these areas and the ability of property
owners in these areas to make payments of principal and
interest on the underlying mortgages. If these regions
experience adverse economic, political or business conditions,
the Company would likely experience higher rates of loss and
delinquency on these mortgage loans than if the loans were
more geographically diverse.

If we do not maintain our historical growth rate, the market
price of our common stock could be adversely affected.

The Company’s return on shareholders’ equity and other
measures of profitability, which affect the market price of our
common stock, depend in part on the Company’s continued
growth and expansion. The Company’s growth strategy has
two principal components—internal and external growth. The
Company’s ability to generate internal growth is affected by the
competitive factors described below as well as by the primarily
rural characteristics and related demographic features of the
markets the Company serves. The Company’s ability to continue
to identify and invest in suitable acquisition candidates on
acceptable terms is crucial to our external growth. In pursuing
acquisition opportunities, the Company may be in competition
with other companies having similar growth strategies. As 
a result, the Company may not be able to identify or acquire
promising acquisition candidates on acceptable terms.
Competition for these acquisitions could result in increased
acquisition prices and a diminished pool of acquisition
opportunities. An inability to find suitable acquisition candidates
at reasonable prices could slow our growth rate and have a
negative affect on the market price of our common stock.

We experience strong competition within our markets 
which may impact our profitability.

Competition in the banking and financial services industry
is strong. In the Company’s market areas, the Company
competes for loans and deposits with local independent banks,
thrift institutions, savings institutions, mortgage brokerage
firms, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds,
insurance companies, and brokerage and investment banking
firms operating locally as well as nationally. Many of these
competitors have substantially greater resources and lending

use of these instruments by the bank subsidiaries. As of
December 31, 2002, the Company had a notional principal of
$30.0 million in interest rate swap agreements. The $30.0
million of interest rate swap agreements mature in 2005. Board
and Management ALCO monitor derivative activities relative to
its expectation and the Company’s hedging policies. These
instruments are more fully described in Note 6, “Derivative
Financial Instruments,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statement, on page 51.

The Company acquired rate swap agreements to convert 
a portion of the loan portfolio from a variable rate based upon
the Prime rate to a fixed rate. In a purchased interest rate swap
agreement, cash interest payments are exchanged between the
Company and counterparty. The estimated effects of these
derivative financial instruments on the Company’s earnings are
included in the sensitivity analysis presented on page 33. The
risks associated with entering into in this transaction are the
risk of default from the counterparty from whom the Company
has entered into agreement and poor correlation between the
rate being swapped and the liability cost of the Company. The
Company’s risk from default of a counterparty is limited to the
expected cash flow anticipated from the counterparty, not the
notional value. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

During 2002 several accounting pronouncements were
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) which affected the operations of the Company. The
following summarizes the specific pronouncements that
affected the Company. 

SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with 
Exit or Disposal Activities,” addresses financial accounting and
reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities.
SFAS No. 146 requires the recognition of costs associated with
exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at
the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan.

SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial
Institutions,” amends SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for Certain
Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions,” to exclude 
from its scope most acquisitions of financial institutions. Such
transactions should be accounted for in accordance with SFAS
No. 141, “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 147 is effective
on October 1, 2002. 

SFAS No. 148 contains enhanced disclosure requirements
for stock-based compensation. The transition guidance and
annual disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are effective 
for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. Adoption 
of the Statement in 2002 had no impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

Statement of Position (“SOP”) 01-6, “Accounting by
Certain Entities (Including Entities With Trade Receivables) 
That Lend to or Finance the Activities of Others,” was issued 
in December 2001. The SOP is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The
SOP reconciles and conforms the accounting and financial
reporting provisions established by various Audit and Accounting
Industry Guides. 

Management does not expect these statements to have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition
and results of operations.

Related Party Transactions

As a bank holding company, the Company’s banking
subsidiaries are allowed to, in their normal course of business,
to make loans to certain officers and directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries under terms that are consistent with the
Company’s lending policies and regulatory requirements. 
In addition to extending loans to certain officers and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries at terms consistent with
the Company’s lending policies, federal banking regulations
also requires training, audit and examination of the Company’s
adherence to this policy by representatives of the Company’s
federal, national and state regulators (also known as “Reg. O”
requirements). As described more fully in Note 20, “Related
Parties,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
on page 59, the Company has not entered into significant 
non-lending related party transactions.

Common Stock Information 

The Company has paid quarterly dividends since its
inception in 1985. The market price (as quoted by AMEX) and
cash dividends paid, per share of the Company’s common
stock, by calendar quarter for the past 2 years were as follows: 

2002

Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

High $25.15 $26.00 $28.50 $23.50
Low 24.20 25.46 27.40 22.74
Close 24.20 26.00 27.85 23.50
Dividend paid 0.17 0.17 0.17 0.17

2001

Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

High $18.80 $18.99 $17.10 $17.15
Low 16.15 15.40 12.70 12.82
Close 18.70 16.58 16.00 13.55
Dividend paid 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16
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Due to the nature of our business, we may be subject to 
litigation from time to time, some of which may not be 
covered by insurance.

The Company, through its bank subsidiaries, operates in a
highly regulated industry, and as a result, is subject to various
regulations related to disclosures to our customers, our
lending practices, and other fiduciary responsibilities. From
time to time, the Company has been, and may become, subject
to legal actions relating to our operations that have had, or
could, involve claims for substantial monetary damages.
Although the Company maintains insurance, the scope of this
coverage may not provide the Company with full, or even
partial, coverage in any particular case. As a result, a judgment
against the Company in any such litigation could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition
and results of operation.
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limits than those of the Company’s subsidiaries and may offer
services that the Company’s subsidiaries do not or cannot
provide. Our long-term success depends on the ability of the
Company’s subsidiaries to compete successfully with other
financial institutions in their service areas. Because the
Company maintains a smaller staff and has fewer financial 
and other resources than larger institutions with which the
Company competes, it may be limited in its ability to attract
customers. If the Company is unable to attract and retain
customers, the Company may be unable to continue the loan
growth and the Company’s results of operations and financial
condition may otherwise be negatively impacted.

Our Cost of Funds for Banking Operations may increase as
a result of general economic conditions, interest rates and
competitive pressures.

The Company’s banking subsidiaries have traditionally
obtained funds principally through deposits and borrowings. 
As a general matter, deposits are a cheaper source of funds
than borrowings, because interest rates paid for deposits are
typically less than interest rates charged for borrowings. If, as 
a result of general economic conditions, market interest rates,
competitive pressures or otherwise, the value of deposits at 
the Company’s banking subsidiaries decreases relative to the
Company’s overall banking operations, the Company may have
to rely more heavily on borrowings as a source of funds in 
the future.

Our banking business is highly regulated. 

Bank holding companies, national banking associations
and state-chartered banks operate in a highly regulated
environment and are subject to supervision, regulation and
examination by various federal and state bank regulatory
agencies, as well as other governmental agencies in the states
in which they operate. Federal and state laws and regulations
govern numerous matters including changes in the ownership
or control of banks and BHCs, maintenance of adequate capital
and the financial condition of a financial institution, permissible
types, amounts and terms of extensions of credit and
investments, permissible non-banking activities, the level 
of reserves against deposits and restrictions on dividend
payments. The OCC, the FDIC and the Superintendent possess
cease and desist powers to prevent or remedy unsafe or
unsound practices or violations of law by banks subject to 
their regulation, and the FRB possesses similar powers with
respect to BHCs. These and other restrictions limit the manner
in which the Company and its subsidiaries may conduct
business and obtain financing. 

Furthermore, the Company’s business is affected not only
by general economic conditions, but also by the economic,
fiscal and monetary policies of the United States and its
agencies and regulatory authorities, particularly the FRB. The

economic and fiscal policies of various governmental entities
and the monetary policies of the FRB may affect the interest
rates the Company’s bank subsidiaries must offer to attract
deposits and the interest rates they must charge on loans, 
as well as the manner in which they offer deposits and make
loans. These economic, fiscal and monetary policies have had,
and are expected to continue to have, significant effects on the
operating results of depository institutions generally including
the Company’s bank subsidiaries.

We could be held responsible for environmental liabilities 
of properties we acquire through foreclosure.

If the Company is forced to foreclose on a defaulted
mortgage loan to recover the Company’s investment the
Company may be subject to environmental liabilities related 
to the underlying real property. Hazardous substances or
wastes, contaminants, pollutants or sources thereof may be
discovered on properties during the Company’s ownership 
or after a sale to a third party. The amount of environmental
liability could exceed the value of the real property. There can
be no assurance that the Company would not be fully liable 
for the entire cost of any removal and clean-up on an acquired
property, that the cost of removal and clean-up would not
exceed the value of the property or that the Company could
recoup any of the costs from any third party.

To the extent that we acquire other companies in the future, 
our business may be negatively impacted by certain risks
inherent with such acquisitions 

Although the Company does not have an aggressive
acquisition strategy, the Company has acquired, and in the
future will continue to consider the acquisition of, other
banking companies. To the extent that the Company acquires
other companies in the future, the Company’s business 
may be negatively impacted by certain risks inherent with 
such acquisitions. 

These risks include the following: 

• the risk that the acquired business will not perform in
accordance with management’s expectations; 

• the risk that difficulties will arise in connection with the
integration of the operations of the acquired business 
with the operations of our businesses;

• the risk that management will divert its attention from
other aspects of our business; 

• the risk that we may lose key employees of the acquired
business; and 

• the risks associated with entering into geographic and
product markets in which we have limited or no direct
prior experience.
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Selected Five-Year Financial Data

(In thousands, except per share data) DECEMBER 31,         

FINANCIAL CONDITION DATA 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Assets $1,218,419 $1,089,355 $1,010,883 $928,350 $839,280
Loans 808,882 724,042 701,340 635,434 569,705
Allowance for Loan Losses 15,242 13,514 10,801 9,390 8,092
Investments 314,775 263,810 217,010 216,132 202,967
Deposits 850,134 763,568 744,360 667,720 641,553
Borrowings 238,861 210,843 168,440 173,924 113,682
Shareholders’ Equity 118,828 105,068 90,923 77,623 77,789

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

OPERATIONS DATA 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Interest Income $     74,572 $ 79,870 $ 79,555 $  69,496 $  61,591
Interest Expense       27,715      35,689      40,042   30,504    27,007
Net Interest Income 46,857 44,181 39,513 38,992 34,584
Provision for Loan Losses        3,080        3,681         2,930     3,670      2,056
Net Interest Income after

Provision for Loan Losses 43,777 40,500 36,583 35,322 32,528
Non-interest Income 14,459 13,094 8,915 7,694 6,573
Non-interest Expense       32,311      31,014      25,396    27,604   22,220
Income before Provision for Income Tax   25,925 22,580 20,102 15,412 16,881
Income Tax Expense 8,425 7,162 6,243 5,183 5,430
Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net           449               –               –            –             –
Net Income $     17,051 $     15,418 $     13,859 $  10,229 $  11,451

AT OR FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

OTHER DATA 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Basic Earnings Per Share $  2.12 $  1.90 $  1.70 $  1.27 $  1.40
Diluted Earnings Per Share 2.11 1.89 1.69 1.27 1.38
Dividends Per Share 0.68 0.64 0.63 0.52 0.47
Book Value Per Share 14.80 13.04 11.17 9.51 9.61
Return on Average Assets 1.48% 1.47% 1.40% 1.15% 1.52%
Return on Average Equity 15.38% 15.55% 16.43% 13.16% 15.09%
Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans 1.88% 1.87% 1.54% 1.48% 1.42%
Non-Performing Loans to Total Loans 1.03% 1.11% 0.93% 1.00% 0.82%
Stock Dividend Payout Ratio 32.08% 33.90% 37.17% 40.90% 33.74%
Efficiency Ratio 52.70% 54.15% 52.44% 59.13% 53.99%

Summary of Financial Performance

NET INCOME
(IN MILLIONS)

ASSETS
(IN MILLIONS)

DEPOSITS
(IN MILLIONS)

LOANS
(IN MILLIONS)

BASIC EARNINGS 
PER SHARE
(IN DOLLARS)

BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
(IN DOLLARS)

11.451
10.229

13.859

15.418

17.051

839.3
928.4

1,010.9
1,089.4

1,218.4

641.6
667.7

744.4 763.6

850.1

569.7
635.4

701.3 724.0

808.9

1.40
1.27

1.70

1.90

2.12

9.61 9.51

11.17

13.04

14.80

’98 ’99 ’00 ’01 ’02 ’98 ’99 ’00 ’01 ’02 ’98 ’99 ’00 ’01 ’02

’98 ’99 ’00 ’01 ’02’98 ’99 ’00 ’01 ’02’98 ’99 ’00 ’01 ’02
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Bingham
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Consolidated Statements of Condition Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands, except number of shares and per share data) DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 

Assets
Cash and due from banks $     33,523 $ 38,861
Securities available for sale, at market 313,780 262,866
Securities held to maturity (market value $995 and $944 

at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) 995 944
Loans, less allowance for loan losses of $15,242 and $13,514

at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively 793,640 710,528
Premises and equipment, net 16,710 17,437
Other real estate owned 490 195
Interest receivable 5,778 5,054
Core deposit intangible 4,767 5,708
Goodwill 3,518 4,208
Other assets 45,218      43,554

Total assets $1,218,419 $1,089,355

Liabilities
Deposits:

Demand $   105,091 $ 96,162
NOW 107,383 95,664
Money market 169,457 134,333
Savings 98,197 88,226
Certificates of deposit 370,006    349,183

Total deposits 850,134 763,568
Borrowings from Federal Home Loan Bank 191,901 168,832
Other borrowed funds 46,960 42,011
Accrued interest and other liabilities 10,596        9,876

Total liabilities 1,099,591    984,287

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 6, 15, 17, 21, 22 and 23)
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock, no par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares, issued

8,609,898 shares in 2002 and 2001 2,450 2,450
Surplus 5,719 5,795
Retained earnings 114,131 102,630
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net unrealized gains on securities available for sale, net of tax 6,800 4,514
Net unrealized gains on derivative instruments, marked to market, net of tax 914              –

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 7,714 4,514
Less remaining obligation under:

Bank recognition and retention plan 3 9
Less cost of 582,524 and 552,117 shares of 

treasury stock on December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively 11,183      10,312
Total shareholders’ equity 118,828    105,068
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $1,218,419 $1,089,355

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

(In thousands, except number of shares and per share data) YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Interest Income
Interest and fees on loans $54,594 $62,362 $61,540
Interest on U.S. government and agency obligations 16,840 14,659 14,753
Interest on state and political subdivision obligations 372 388 393
Interest on interest rate swap agreements 1,897 1,370 1,434
Interest on federal funds sold and other investments 869   1,091    1,435

Total interest income 74,572  79,870   79,555

Interest Expense
Interest on deposits 17,090 24,895 27,066
Interest on other borrowings 9,325 9,846 11,650
Interest on interest rate swap agreements 1,300      948    1,326

Total interest expense 27,715  35,689   40,042
Net interest income 46,857 44,181 39,513

Provision for Loan Losses 3,080   3,681    2,930
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 43,777  40,500   36,583

Other Income
Service charges on deposit accounts 3,770 3,542 2,880
Other service charges and fees 1,965 2,390 1,764
Merchant assessments 2,135 2,086 1,802
Trust fees 3,625 2,503 1,281
Brokerage and insurance commissions 252 30 –
Gain on sale of derivatives – 932 –
Gain on sale of securities 156 336 –
Other income 2,556    1,275    1,188

Total other income 14,459  13,094    8,915
58,236  53,594   45,498

Operating Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 16,500 14,279 11,558
Net occupancy 2,299 2,075 1,666
Furniture, equipment and data processing 2,132 2,125 2,097
Merchant program 1,812 1,995 1,778
Amortization of core deposit intangible 941 952 986
Acquisition related 75 353 232
Other 8,552   9,235    7,079

Total operating expenses 32,311  31,014   25,396

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change 25,925 22,580 20,102
Income Taxes  8,425   7,162    6,243

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 17,500  15,418   13,859
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for 

goodwill, net of tax benefit of $241 449         –          –

Net Income $17,051 $15,418 $13,859

Per Share Data
Basic earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 2.18 $ 1.90 $    1.70
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for goodwill, net of tax benefit  (0.06)           –          –
Basic earnings per share 2.12 1.90 1.70
Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change 2.17 1.89 1.69
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for goodwill, net of tax benefit (0.06)           –          –
Diluted earnings per share 2.11 1.89 1.69
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 8,049,629 8,123,928 8,164,188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Bucksport
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Madison

Farmington
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

42 Camden National Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Net Unrealized Net 
Gains (Losses) Unrealized Bank
on Securities Gains on Recognition Total

(In thousands, except number Common Retained Available Derivative and Retention Treasury Shareholders’
of shares and per share data) Stock Surplus Earnings for Sale Instruments Plan Stock Equity

Balance at December 31, 1999 $2,450 $5,990 $  83,583 $(5,782) $    – $(20) $  (8,598) $  77,623

Net income for 2000 – – 13,859 – – – – 13,859
Change in unrealized gains on securities available 

for sale, net of deferred taxes of $2,600        –        –             –    4,970      –     –          –     4,970
Total comprehensive income – – 13,859 4,970 – – – 18,829

Purchase of treasury stock (24,950 shares) – – – – – – (394) (394)
Exercise and repurchase of stock options

(8,680 shares), net of tax benefit of $6 – (62) – – – – 40 (22)
Exercise of stock options (2,933 shares), 

net of tax benefit of $11 – (19) – – – – 50 31
Bank recognition and retention plan – – – – – 6 – 6
Cash dividends declared ($0.63 / share)        –        –    (5,150)         –      –      –           –    (5,150)
Balance at December 31, 2000 $2,450 $5,909 $  92,292 $   (812) $     – $(14) $  (8,902) $  90,923

Net income for 2001 – – 15,418 – – – – 15,418
Cumulative effect to record unrealized appreciation

on securities held to maturity transferred to 
securities available for sale, net of taxes of $1,021 – – – 1,982 – – – 1,982

Change in unrealized gains on securities available
for sale, net of deferred taxes of $1,700                    –        –             –    3,344      –     –          –     3,344

Total comprehensive income – – 15,418 5,326 – – – 20,744
Purchase of treasury stock (87,560 shares) – – – – – – (1,444) (1,444)
Exercise and repurchase of stock options

(19,926 shares), net of tax benefit of $41 – (114) – – – – 34  (80)
Bank recognition and retention plan – – – – – 5 – 5
Acquisition of minority interest – – 146 – – – – 146
Cash dividends declared ($0.64 / share)        –        –    (5,226)         –      –     –           –    (5,226)
Balance at December 31, 2001 $2,450 $5,795 $102,630 $ 4,514 $     – $  (9) $(10,312) $105,068

Net income for 2002 – – 17,051 – – – – 17,051
Change in unrealized gains on derivative 

instruments, net of deferred taxes of $492 – – – – 914 – – 914
Change in unrealized gains on securities available

for sale, net of deferred taxes of $1,200             –        –             –  2,286      –     –          –     2,286
Total comprehensive income – – 17,051 2,286 914 – – 20,251

Purchase of treasury stock (37,950 shares) – – – – – – (919) (919)
Exercise and repurchase of stock options

(15,680 shares), net of tax benefit of $58 – (20) – – – – (94)  (114)
Exercise of stock options (7,543 shares), 

net of deferred taxes of $35 – (56) – – – – 142 86
Bank recognition and retention plan – – – – – 6 – 6
Cash dividends declared ($0.68 / share) –        –    (5,550)         –      –     –          –    (5,550)
Balance at December 31, 2002 $2,450 $5,719 $114,131 $ 6,800 $ 914 $  (3) $(11,183) $118,828

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(In thousands) YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Operating Activities
Net Income $ 17,051 $  15,418 $  13,859
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Provision for loan losses 3,080 3,681 2,930
Depreciation and amortization 3,129 3,497 2,356
Decrease in obligation under ESOP and BRRP 6 5 6
(Decrease) increase in interest receivable (724) 1,905 (1,117)
(Decrease) increase in other assets (1,900) (2,611) 1,759
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 613 2,474 (5,343)
Decrease (increase) in residential mortgage loans held for sale – 12,838 (5,932)
(Decrease) increase in minority position – (176) 61
Goodwill impairment loss 690 – –
Gain on sale of securities (156)         (336)               –
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,789       36,695          8,579

Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of securities held to maturity 1,550 – 10,587
Proceeds from sales and maturities of securities available for sale 83,748 39,805 8,509
Purchase of securities held to maturity (1,588) (944) –
Purchase of securities available for sale (131,401) (77,217) (12,456)
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank Stock – – (174)
Net increase in loans (86,192) (36,508) (61,493)
Net (increase) decrease in other real estate owned (295) 185 1,025
Purchase of premises and equipment (1,036) (3,503) (5,506) 
Net decrease in federal funds sold – – 415
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance – – (10,000) 
Cash paid in connection with acquisitions – (4,563) –
Cash received through acquisitions –           567               –

Net cash used by investing activities (135,214)      (82,178)      (69,093)

Financing Activities 
Net increase in deposits 86,566 19,208 76,640
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings 2,656,280 3,698,976 5,299,675
Repayments on Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings (2,633,211) (3,662,492) (5,296,193)
Net increase (decrease) in other borrowed funds 4,949 5,919 (8,966)
Purchase of treasury stock (919) (1,444) (394)
Proceeds from stock issuance under option plan 86 – 31
Exercise and repurchase of stock options (114) (80) (22)
Acquisition of minority interest – 146 –
Cash dividends paid (5,550)       (5,226)        (5,150)

Net cash provided by financing activities    108,087     55,007       65,621
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,338) 9,524 5,107

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 38,861     29,337     24,230
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $     33,523 $     38,861 $    29,337

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $     27,683 $    36,594 $ 39,516 
Income tax 8,424 7,878 6,320

Non-Cash transactions:
Transfer from loans to other real estate owned 492 371 302
Securitization of mortgage loans 16,699 57,000 –
Transfer from securities held to maturity to available for sale – 57,695 –
Transfer from premises and equipment to other real estate owned 337 – –

See Note 2, “Acquisitions,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, on page 47, for acquisition disclosure.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Kennebunk
Rangeley

Phillips
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(Amounts in tables expressed in thousands, except number of shares and per share data)

NATURE OF OPERATIONS.

Camden National Corporation (or the “Company”), as a multi-bank and financial services holding company, provides financial
services to its customers through three major subsidiaries. Camden National Bank and UnitedKingfield Bank provide traditional
commercial and consumer financial services through 28 branch locations in central, southern, mid-coast and western Maine
and by online access. Acadia Trust, N.A. (and prior to its merger into Acadia Trust, N.A. on January 1, 2003, Trust Company of
Maine, Inc.) provide trust and investment management services to their clients, who are primarily located in the State of Maine,
and to the clients of the Company’s two banking subsidiaries.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and to general
practice within the banking industry. The following is a summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company, 
its wholly owned bank subsidiaries, Camden National Bank and UnitedKingfield Bank, and its wholly owned non-bank subsidiary,
Acadia Trust, N.A. (and prior to its merger into Acadia Trust, N.A. on January 1, 2003, Trust Company of Maine, Inc.). All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Assets held by the non-bank subsidiary in a 
fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and, therefore, are not included in the Consolidated Statement of Condition.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements. The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Material estimates
that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and
the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. In connection with the determination
of the allowance for loan losses and the carrying value of real estate owned, management obtains independent appraisals for
significant properties.

Cash. The Company is required to comply with various laws and regulations of the Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”), which
require the Company to maintain certain amounts of cash on deposit and restrict the Company from investing those amounts. The
Company maintains those balances at the FRB of Boston. In the normal course of business, the Company has funds on deposit at
other financial institutions in amounts in excess of the $100,000 insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). 
For the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents consist of cash and due from banks.

Investment Securities. The Company has classified its investment securities into investments available for sale and
investments to be held to maturity. 

Securities Available for Sale. Debt and other securities that are to be held for indefinite periods of time are stated at market
value. Changes in net unrealized gains or losses are recorded as an adjustment to shareholders’ equity until realized. Market values
of securities are determined by prices obtained from independent market sources. Realized gains and losses on securities sold are
computed on the identified cost basis on the trade date.

Securities Held to Maturity. Bonds and notes for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are
reported at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. Premiums and discounts are recognized in
interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity.

Residential Mortgages Held for Sale. Residential mortgages held for sale are primarily one-to-four family real estate loans 
that are valued at the lower of cost or market on an individual basis, as determined by quoted market prices from the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac”). Gains and losses from sales of residential mortgages held for sale are recognized upon
settlement with investors and recorded in other income. These activities, together with underwriting residential mortgage loans,
comprise the Company’s mortgage banking business.

Loan Servicing. The cost of mortgage servicing rights is amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net
servicing revenues. Impairment of mortgage servicing rights is assessed based on the fair value of those rights. Fair values are
estimated using discounted cash flows based on a current market interest rate. For purposes of measuring impairment, the rights

are stratified based on the following predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans: interest rate, fixed versus variable rate,
and period of origination. The amount of impairment recognized is the amount by which the capitalized mortgage servicing rights for
a stratum exceeds their fair value. 

Loans. Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until maturity or
payoff, are reported at their outstanding principal balance, adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any
deferred fees or costs. Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding. The accrual
of interest on loans is discontinued when, in the opinion of management, there is an indication that the borrower may be unable to
meet payments as they become due. Upon such discontinuance, interest income is reduced for all accrued but unpaid interest. Loans
are returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are
reasonably assured.

Loans past due 30 days or more are considered delinquent. In general, consumer loans will be charged off if the loan is
delinquent for 120 consecutive days. Commercial and real estate loans may be charged off in part or in full if they appear
uncollectible. 

Fees received and direct costs incurred for the origination of loans are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of loan yield. 

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate to absorb expected future charge-offs of loans 
deemed uncollectible. Management determines the adequacy of the allowance based upon reviews of individual credits, recent 
loss experience, current economic conditions, known and inherent risk characteristics of the various categories of loans, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of underlying collateral, and other pertinent factors. The
allowance is increased by provisions charged to operating expense and by recoveries on loans previously charged off. Credits
deemed uncollectible are charged against the allowance.

Loans considered to be impaired are reduced to the present value of expected future cash flows or to the fair value of collateral,
by allocating a portion of the allowance for loan losses to such loans. If these allocations cause the allowance for loan losses to
require an increase, such increase is reported as provision for loan losses.

The carrying values of impaired loans are periodically adjusted to reflect cash payments, revised estimates of future cash flows,
and increases in the present value of expected cash flows due to the passage of time. Cash payments representing interest income
are reported as such. Other cash payments are reported as reductions in carrying value, while increases or decreases due to changes
in estimates of future payments and due to the passage of time are reported as provision for loan losses. 

Other Real Estate Owned. Other real estate owned represents real estate acquired through foreclosure or upon receipt of 
a deed in lieu of foreclosure and is recorded at the lower of the recorded amount of the loan or market value of the underlying
collateral, less estimated selling costs, determined by an independent appraisal, with any difference at the time of acquisition treated
as a loan loss. Subsequent reductions in market value below the carrying cost are charged directly to other operating expenses.

Premises and Equipment. Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Intangible Assets. The value of core deposits premium with respect to $104.0 million in deposits acquired by the Company in
connection with the acquisition, in 1998, of 8 branch locations is being amortized over periods ranging from 10 to 15 years using the
straight-line method.

Amortization of software is recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the various software
items, which primarily is three years. On an ongoing basis, management reviews the valuation and amortization of intangible assets
to determine possible impairment.

Goodwill. The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” as of January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 requires, in part, that recorded goodwill be tested at least annually for
impairment rather than being amortized over the estimated useful life of the underlying business. Goodwill acquired in a purchase
business combination completed after June 30, 2001, but before SFAS No. 142 was adopted in full, was not amortized. The
Company had no business combinations treated as a purchase before June 30, 2001; therefore, the Company did not have goodwill
prior to that date.

Dover-Foxcroft

Milo
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Other Borrowed Funds. Other borrowed funds consist of commercial and consumer repurchase agreements with a carrying
value of $46.0 million and $41.0 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and treasury tax and loan deposits. Securities
sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within 30 days and are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection
with the transaction. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying securities. 

Treasury tax and loan deposits generally do not have fixed maturity dates.

Income Taxes. The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax implications attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. If current available information raises doubt as 
to the realization of the deferred tax assets, a valuation allowance is established. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. 

Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share data is computed based on the weighted average number of the Company’s
common shares outstanding during each year. Potential common stock is considered in the calculation of weighted average shares
outstanding for diluted earnings per share, and is determined using the treasury stock method.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk. In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into 
credit related financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments under credit card arrangements,
commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when
they are funded.

Derivative Financial Instruments Designated as Hedges. In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which sets accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities. The Statement, as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities—an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133,” requires the Company to
recognize all derivatives in the Consolidated Statement of Condition at fair value. The Company adopted the Statement effective
January 1, 2001 and transferred all of its investment securities classified as held to maturity to the available-for-sale classification.
The impact of this reclassification was an increase to other comprehensive income of $2.0 million, net of applicable taxes, which
was reported as a cumulative effect adjustment to other comprehensive income.

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, the Company recognizes all derivatives in the Consolidated Statement of Condition at fair
value. On the date the Company enters into the derivative contract, the Company designates the derivative as a hedge of either a
forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (“cash flow
hedge”), a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (“fair value hedge”) or a
held for trading instrument (“trading instrument”). The Company formally documents relationships between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Company
also assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values of hedged items. Changes in fair value of a derivative that is
highly effective and that qualifies as a cash flow hedge are recorded in other comprehensive income and are reclassified into
earnings when the forecasted transaction or related cash flows affect earnings. Changes in fair value of a derivative that qualifies 
as a fair value hedge and the change in fair value of the hedged item are both recorded in earnings and offset each other when the
transaction is highly effective. Those derivatives that are classified as trading instruments are recorded at fair value with changes in
fair value recorded in earnings. The Company discontinues hedge accounting when it determines that the derivative is no longer
highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged item, that it is unlikely that the forecasted transaction will
occur, or that the designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate. 

Fair Value Disclosures. The Company, in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments, used the following
methods and assumptions:

Cash and due from banks: The carrying amounts of cash and due from banks approximate their fair value.

Securities held to maturity and securities available for sale: Fair values of securities held to maturity and securities available for
sale are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted
market prices of comparable instruments. The carrying amounts of other securities approximate their fair value.

Residential mortgages held for sale: Fair values are based on quoted market prices from Freddie Mac.

Loans receivable: For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are
based on carrying values. The fair value of other loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. 

Interest receivable and payable: The carrying amounts of interest receivable and payable approximate their fair value.

Life insurance policies: The carrying amounts of life insurance policies approximate their fair value.

Deposits: The fair value of demand and NOW deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is the amount
payable on demand. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated using the rates currently offered in the
Company’s market for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowings: The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston (“FHLBB”), securities
sold under repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings approximate fair value. The fair value of long-term borrowings
is based on the discounted cash flows using current rates for advances of similar remaining maturities. 

Derivative financial instruments: Fair values for interest rate swap, floor and cap contracts are based on quoted market prices. 

Credit related financial instruments: In the course of originating loans and extending credit and standby letters of credit, the
Company charges fees in exchange for its lending commitment. While these commitment fees have value, the Company does not
believe their value is material to its financial statements due to the short-term nature of the underlying commitments.

Effect of Recently Issued Financial Standards. Effective in 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions,” SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure,” Statement of Position (“SOP”) 01-6, “Accounting by
Certain Entities (Including Entities with Trade Receivables) That Lend to or Finance the Activities of Others.”

SFAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities. SFAS No. 146
requires the recognition of costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a
commitment to an exit or disposal plan. This statement had no impact on the company’s consolidated financial condition and 
results of operations.

SFAS No. 147 amended SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions,” to exclude from its
scope most acquisitions of financial institutions. Such transactions should be accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141,
“Business Combinations.” This Statement had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition and results of
operations.

SFAS No. 148 contains enhanced disclosure requirements for stock-based compensation. The transition guidance and annual
disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. Adoption of the Statement in
2002 had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

SOP 01-6 was issued in December 2001. The SOP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. The SOP reconciles and conforms the accounting and financial reporting provisions established by various
Audit and Accounting Industry Guides. Adoption of this Statement had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition
and results of operations. 

Reclassification. Certain items from the prior year were restated to conform to the current year presentation.

2. ACQUISITIONS

On July 19, 2001, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Acadia Trust, N.A. and Gouws Capital
Management, Inc. (“Gouws Capital”). Acadia Trust, N.A., headquartered in Portland, Maine and founded in 1991, is a nationally
chartered trust company offering traditional trust services and was custodian and trustee, at the date of acquisition, for approximately
$300 million in assets. Gouws Capital, founded in 1984 and also headquartered in Portland, Maine, offers investment advisory
services to high net worth individuals and institutions. Gouws Capital had approximately $342 million of assets under management
at the date of acquisition, of which approximately $300 million was held at Acadia Trust, N.A. Subsequent to the acquisition, Gouws
Capital was merged into Acadia Trust, N.A.
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The following is a summary of the transactions:

Cash $ 567
Investments 1,378
Goodwill 3,160
Premises and equipment 206
Other assets 328
Other liabilities  (1,076)

Net cash paid $ 4,563

On October 24, 2001, the Company acquired the remaining 49% of Trust Company of Maine, Inc. (“TCOM”). The Company acquired
the majority ownership (51%) of TCOM in December 1995 through the Company’s merger with UnitedCorp, then the parent of TCOM.
TCOM is a non-depository trust company chartered under the laws of the State of Maine and has its principal office in Bangor, Maine.
TCOM provided a broad range of trust, trust-related, and investment services, in addition to retirement and pension plan management
services, to both individual and institutional clients. This transaction resulted in the recording of  $1.1 million in goodwill. On
January 1, 2003, TCOM was merged with and into Acadia Trust, N.A., with Acadia Trust, N.A. remaining as the surviving entity.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the results of operations of the acquired subsidiaries are included in the results of
operations only from their respective dates of acquisition.

3. GOODWILL

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
SFAS No. 141 specifies that intangible assets acquired in a business combination must be recognized and reported separately from
goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires, in part, that recorded goodwill be tested at least annually for impairment rather than being amortized
over the estimated useful life of the underlying business. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 141 as of July 1, 2001
and SFAS No. 142 as of January 1, 2002. The purchase of Acadia Trust, N.A. and Gouws Capital was accounted for under SFAS No.
141. Goodwill acquired in a purchase business combination completed after June 30, 2001, but before SFAS No. 142 was adopted 
in full, is not amortized. The Company had no business combinations treated as a purchase before July 1, 2001; thus, the Company 
did not have any goodwill prior to that date. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company evaluated its existing intangible assets
and goodwill that were acquired in purchase business combinations, and considered whether any necessary reclassifications were
required in order to conform with the new classification criteria in SFAS No. 141 for recognition separate from goodwill. No such
reclassifications were required.

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, SFAS No. 142 required the Company to perform an assessment
of whether there was an indication that goodwill was permanently impaired as of the date of adoption. The Company identified its
reporting units and determined the carrying value of each reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing
goodwill, to those reporting units as of the date of adoption. As a result of this process, the Company identified Banking and
Financial Services as reporting units based on operational characteristics, the existence of discrete financial information, and 
direct management review of these units. The Company determined that goodwill was impaired as of January 1, 2002, the date 
of adoption, and the transitional impairment loss, net of taxes, was recognized as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Income.

The Company estimated the value of goodwill as of January 1, 2002 utilizing several standard valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow analyses, as well as an estimation of the impact of business conditions on the long-term value of the goodwill
carried on the Company’s statement of condition. The Company determined that the impact of the overall deterioration of the stock
market on investor activities within its target market had negatively impacted the value of its goodwill balances related to the
acquisitions of its financial services subsidiaries. This resulted in an estimation of impairment of $690,000 before taxes.

At January 1, 2002, goodwill was as follows:

Financial
Banking Services Total

Goodwill, at cost $1,800 $2,408 $4,208
Transitional impairment loss         –    (690)   (690)
Goodwill, net $1,800 $1,718 $3,518

4. CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE

The Company has a core deposit intangible asset related to the acquisition of bank branches in 1998. The core deposit intangible is
amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years, and reviewed for possible impairment when it is determined that events or changed
circumstances may affect the underlying basis of the asset. The carrying amount is as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2002 DECEMBER 31, 2001
Core deposit intangible, cost $9,424 $9,424
Accumulated amortization  4,657  3,716
Core deposit intangible, net $4,767 $5,708

Amortization expense related to the core deposit intangible for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted to
$941.1 thousand, $952.2 thousand and $985.5 thousand, respectively.  The expected amortization expense for each year in the 
five-year period ending December 31, 2007 is estimated to be $941.1 thousand.

5. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The following tables summarize the amortized costs and market values of securities available for sale and held to maturity, as of the
dates indicated:

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Available for sale
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. government corporations and agencies $104,673 $  3,339 $ – $108,012
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 8,551 384 – 8,935
Mortgage-backed securities 143,849 6,321 – 150,170
Other debt securities   34,953       822      –  35,775

Total debt securities 292,026  10,866      – 302,892

Equity securities 11,451      217   (780)   10,888

Total securities available for sale $303,477 $11,083 $(780) $313,780

Held to maturity
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. government corporations and agencies $      995 $     – $    – $      995

Total securities held to maturity $      995 $      – $     – $       995
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DECEMBER 31, 2001

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Available for sale
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of 

U.S. government corporations and agencies $ 58,204 $2,894 $ – $  61,098
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 8,923 21 (164) 8,780
Mortgage-backed securities 136,094 3,391 (26) 139,459
Other debt securities     41,295    826   (158)     41,963
Total debt securities   244,516  7,132   (348)   251,300

Equity securities     11,509    133    (76)     11,566

Total securities available for sale $256,025 $7,265 $(424) $262,866

Held to maturity
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of 

U.S. government corporations and agencies $       944 $      – $   – $       944

Total securities held to maturity $       944 $    – $    – $       944

The amortized cost and fair values of debt securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2002 are shown below. Expected
maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

Available for sale
Due in one year or less $ 7,599 $ 7,736
Due after one year through five years 116,558 121,102
Due after five years through ten years 14,378 14,876
Due after ten years   153,491  159,178

$292,026 $302,892

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

Held to maturity
Due in one year or less $     995 $       995

$     995 $       995

For purposes of the maturity table, mortgage-backed securities, which are not due at a single maturity date, have been allocated 
to the due-after-ten-years category.

Proceeds from the sale of investments classified as available for sale during 2002 were $8.2 million, which resulted in gross 
realized gains of $156,250. Proceeds from the sale of investments classified as available for sale during 2001 were $7.4 million,
which resulted in gross realized gains of $336,423. There were no sales in the held to maturity portfolio during 2002 or 2001. 
There were no sales in either the available-for-sale or held-to-maturity portfolios during 2000. 

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, securities with an amortized cost of $211.0 million and $78.1 million and a fair value of $219.2
million and $80.9 million, respectively, were pledged to secure Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston (“FHLBB”) advances, public
deposits, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and other purposes required or permitted by law. 

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has interest rate swap agreements with notional amounts of $30.0 million at December 31, 2002. Under these
agreements the Company exchanges a variable rate asset for a fixed rate asset, thus protecting certain asset yields from falling
interest rates. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, management designated these swaps as cash flow hedges and determined the
hedging transaction to be 100% effective. Therefore, the changes in fair value of the swap agreements are recorded in other
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2002, the swaps had a fair value of approximately $1.4 million, less tax of $492,000,
which has been recorded as other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.

In 2000, the Company purchased interest rate protection agreements (caps) with notional amounts of $90.0 million. These caps
were used to limit the Company’s exposure to a raising rate environment. Under these agreements, the Company paid up front
premiums of $239,000 for the right to receive cash flow payments in excess of the predetermined cap rate, thus effectively capping
its interest rate cost for the duration of the agreement. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, management designated these caps as
cash flow hedges. For a qualifying cash flow hedge, an interest rate cap is carried on the Consolidated Statement of Condition at fair
value with the time and option volatility value changes reflected in the current Consolidated Statement of Income. Any intrinsic value
will be recorded in other comprehensive income and recognized in future Consolidated Statements of Income as an offset to related
future interest costs. At December 31, 2001, the caps had no fair value and therefore there was no effect on the Consolidated
Statement of Income or other comprehensive income. The caps matured during the second and third quarters of 2002.

As part of its interest rate risk management, the Company used interest rate swap agreements to hedge a portfolio of brokered
certificates of deposit. These swaps were designated as a fair value hedge since they were used to convert the cost of the
certificates of deposit from a fixed to a variable rate. These swaps were called during the third quarter of 2001 and subsequently 
the Company exercised the call option on the brokered certificates of deposit offsetting the swaps. Since the hedge relationship 
was estimated to be 100% effective (gain or loss on the swap agreements will completely offset the gain or loss on the brokered
certificates of deposit) there was no impact on the Consolidated Statement of Income or other comprehensive income. 

On April 11, 2001, the Company sold an interest rate floor agreement and an interest rate swap agreement. The purpose of the
interest rate floor was to protect net interest income from falling interest rates by “flooring” certain asset yields for a contracted
period of time, and thus provide a minimum earnings level from these assets. The purpose of the interest rate swap agreement 
was to exchange a variable rate asset for a fixed rate asset, thus protecting certain asset yields from falling interest rates. With a
substantial decline in the interest rate environment, it was determined that it would be economically advantageous to sell both the
interest rate floor agreement and the interest rate swap agreement rather than wait for the potential cash flows over the life of these
instruments. In addition, subsequent to the Company having purchased these instruments, other strategies were implemented to
protect the balance sheet in a declining interest rate environment including the use of short-term funding and the extension of fixed
rate assets. The impact of the sale of the interest rate floor and interest rate swap agreements was an increase to net income of
$615,000, net of applicable taxes.

7. LOANS

The composition of the Company’s loan portfolio at December 31 was as follows:

2002 2001

Commercial loans $461,841 $423,893
Residential real estate loans 244,712 204,819
Consumer loans 96,323 86,375
Municipal loans 6,302 9,234
Other loans 558        497
Total loans 809,736 724,818
Less deferred loan fees net of costs 854 776
Less allowance for loan losses 15,242    13,514

$793,640 $710,528
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The Company’s lending activities are conducted in eastern, central, western, southern and mid-coast Maine. The Company makes
single family and multi-family residential loans, commercial real estate loans, business loans and a variety of consumer loans. In
addition, the Company makes loans for the construction of residential homes, multi-family properties and commercial real estate
properties. The ability and willingness of borrowers to honor their repayment commitments is generally dependent on the level of
overall economic activity within the geographic area and the general economy.

The Company sold fixed-rate residential mortgage loans on the secondary market, which resulted in net gains on the sale of loans 
of $97,000, $78,000, and $48,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, nonaccrual loans were $8,300,000 and $7,022,000, respectively. Interest foregone was
approximately $546,000, $505,000 and $528,000 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.  

8. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Beginning balance $13,514 $10,801 $  9,390
Provision for loan losses 3,080 3,681 2,930
Recoveries 738 581 626
Loans charged off (2,090)  (1,549)  (2,145)
Net charge offs (1,352)     (968)   (1,519)
Ending balance $15,242 $13,514 $10,801

Information regarding impaired loans is as follows:

DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Average investment in impaired loans $7,698 $6,030 $5,871
Interest income recognized on impaired loans, all on cash basis 341 330 241
Balance of impaired loans 8,300 7,022 4,644
Portion of impaired loan balance for which an allowance for credit losses is allocated 8,300 7,022 4,644
Portion of allowance for loan losses allocated to the impaired loan balance 1,824 1,862 860

9. SECURITIZATION OF MORTGAGE LOANS

As part of a balance sheet management program, the Company securitized with Freddie Mac $16.7 million and $57.0 million of
residential mortgage loans during 2002 and 2001, respectively. These transactions resulted in the Company's loan balances
decreasing, as those assets shifted to investment securities. The Company will receive annual servicing fees as compensation for
servicing the outstanding balances. The Company has no retained interests in the securitized residential mortgage loans. In addition,
$208,960 and $677,300 of mortgage servicing rights associated with the transactions were recognized in income during 2002 and
2001, respectively. The Company did not securitize any loans during 2000.

10. MORTGAGE SERVICING

Residential real estate mortgages are originated by the Company both for portfolio and for sale into the secondary market. The sale
of loans is to institutional investors such as Freddie Mac. Under loan sale and servicing agreements with the investor, the Company
generally continues to service the residential real estate mortgages. The Company pays the investor an agreed-upon rate on the
loan, which is less than the interest rate the Company receives from the borrower. The Company retains the difference as a fee for
servicing the residential real estate mortgages. As required by SFAS No. 140, the Company capitalizes mortgage servicing rights at

their fair value upon sale of the related loans. Capitalized servicing rights totaled $643,000, $829,000 and $107,000 during 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Amortization expense totaled $523,000, $217,000 and $32,000 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Condition of the Company.
The unpaid principal balance of mortgage loans serviced for others was $154,084,000, $147,232,000 and $111,002,000 at
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with the foregoing loan servicing, and included in demand deposits, were
$347,000 and $341,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

11. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Details of premises and equipment, at cost, at December 31 were as follows:

2002 2001

Land and buildings $15,352 $15,857
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15,951 15,151
Leasehold improvements    1,260    1,222

32,563 32,230 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 15,853  14,793

$16,710 $17,437

Depreciation expense was $1,684,000, $1,719,000 and $1,529,000 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

12. OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

The transactions in other real estate owned for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Beginning balance $195 $380 $1,405
Additions 492 371 302
Properties sold 104 554 1,180
Writedowns 93     2     147
Ending balance $490 $195 $  380

13. DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of certificates of deposit, each with a minimum denomination of $100,000, was approximately $80,311,000
and $63,451,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Certificates of deposit included brokered deposits in the amount of
$56,754,000 and $46,196,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit were as follows:

2003 $173,951
2004 97,870
2005 55,068
2006 7,491
2007 17,713
Thereafter   17,913

$370,006
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14. BORROWINGS

A summary of the borrowings, including the outstanding balance of lines of credit, from the FHLBB is as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Principal Amounts Interest Rates Maturity Date

$  76,405 1.35% – 6.12% 2003
12,000 3.27% – 5.19% 2004
28,101 3.97% – 5.55% 2006
19,395 4.27% – 4.47% 2007
12,000 4.88% – 4.97% 2009
10,000 4.95% 2010

  34,000 4.07% – 5.02% 2011
$191,901

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Principal Amounts Interest Rates Maturity Date

$ 24,578 4.82% – 5.19% 2002
45,000 4.24% – 6.12% 2003
12,000 3.27% – 5.19% 2004
31,254 3.97% – 5.55% 2006
12,000 4.88% – 4.97% 2009
10,000 4.95% 2010

    34,000 4.07% – 5.02% 2011
$168,832

Short- and long-term borrowings from the FHLBB consist of both fixed and adjustable rate borrowings and are collateralized by all
stock in the FHLBB and a blanket lien on qualified collateral consisting primarily of loans with first mortgages secured by one-to-four
family properties, certain pledged investment securities and other qualified assets. The carrying value of loans pledged as collateral
was $236,254,000 and $194,659,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The FHLBB at its discretion can call $101,000,000
of the Company’s long-term borrowings. The Company, through its bank subsidiaries, has an available line of credit with FHLBB of
$12,980,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Company had no outstanding balance on its line of credit with the FHLBB at
December 31, 2002 or 2001.

The Company utilizes other borrowings in the form of treasury, tax and loan deposits and repurchase agreements secured by U.S.
government or agency securities. Balances outstanding at December 31 are shown in the table below:

2002 2001

Treasury, tax and loan deposits $  1,000 $  1,058 
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 45,960  40,953
Total other borrowed funds $46,960 $42,011

Weighted-average rate at the end of period 1.74% 3.68%

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

The Company’s postretirement plans provide medical and life insurance to certain eligible retired employees. It is the Company’s
policy to fund the cost of postretirement health care and life insurance plans as premiums are paid; therefore, there are no 
plan assets.

On October 17, 2000, the Company terminated the defined-benefit noncontributory pension plan, which covered substantially all
eligible employees over 21 years of age with 1 year of employment. Total plan assets of $5,168,000 were distributed to eligible

employees during the first half of 2001. During 2000, the Company recognized $437,000 of net income due to the over accrual of
the benefit obligation at the date of plan termination.

Information regarding the postretirement benefit plan is as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of the year $ 765 $ 724 $ 481
Service cost 57 43 38
Interest cost 53 50 32
Actuarial gain (loss) 15 (22) 200
Benefits paid (38) (30)    (27)
Benefit obligation at end of year 852   765    724

Funded status (852) (765) (724)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 242 237 273
Unrecognized net prior service cost (62)   (78)   (94)
Accrued benefit cost, included in other liabilities $(672) $(606) $(545)

Weighted-average discount rate assumption 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%

2002 2001 2000

Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $  57 $ 43 $ 38
Interest cost 53 50 32
Amortization of prior service cost (16) (16) (16)
Recognized net actuarial loss   11    14    3
Net periodic benefit cost $105 $ 91 $ 57

For measurement purposes, a 6.2% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost to cover health care benefits was assumed for
2003. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to a 6.0% annual growth rate after 3 years, and remain at a 6.0% annual growth
rate thereafter. A 1.0% increase or decrease in the assumed health care cost trends rate would not have a material impact on the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation due to a built-in cap on annual benefits.

The Company also sponsors an unfunded, non-qualified supplemental retirement plan for certain officers. The agreement provides
that participants will be paid a life annuity upon retirement or death. Prior to September 1, 1999, the plan provided supplemental
retirement payments over 15 years upon retirement or death. 

The expense of this supplemental plan was $403,000, $399,000 and $274,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The accrued
liability of this plan at December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $1,788,000 and $1,562,000, respectively.

401(k) / Profit Sharing Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan whereby substantially all employees participate in the plan. Employees may contribute up to 15% of
their compensation subject to certain limits based on federal tax laws. The Company makes matching contributions and may make
additional contributions subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
aggregate expenses under the plan amounted to $772,000, $527,000 and $214,000, respectively.

Bank Recognition and Retention Plan

The Company maintained a Bank Recognition and Retention Plan (“BRRP”) as a method of providing certain officers and other
employees of the Company with a proprietary interest in the Company. During 1994, the Company contributed funds to the BRRP 
to enable such Company officers and employees to acquire, in the aggregate, 56,045 shares of common stock of the Company. The
Company recognizes expense related to the BRRP based on the vesting schedule. Participants are vested at a rate of 20% per year
commencing 1 year from the date of the award. Total expense related to the BRRP was $5,712 for 2002, 2001 and 2000.
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company, through its bank and non-bank subsidiaries, provides a broad range of financial services to individuals and
companies in the State of Maine. These services include lending, demand deposits, savings and time deposits, cash management,
and trust services. While the Company’s senior management team monitors operations of each subsidiary, these subsidiaries
primarily operate in the banking industry. Substantially all revenues and services are derived from banking products and services in
Maine. Accordingly, the Company’s subsidiaries are considered by management to be aggregated in 1 reportable operating segment.

17. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The primary source of funds available to the Company for payment of dividends to its shareholders is dividends paid to the
Company by its subsidiaries. The Company’s subsidiary banks are subject to certain requirements imposed by state and federal
banking laws and regulations. These requirements, among other things, establish minimum levels of capital and restrict the amount
of dividends that may be distributed by the subsidiary banks to the Company. 

The Company has 3 stock option plans accounted for under Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25 and related
interpretations, as permitted under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”  The 1993 stock option plan, 
which is the plan currently available for future grants, allows the Company to grant options to employees for up to 19,732 additional
shares of Company common stock. Under all three plans, the options are immediately vested when granted, and expire 10 years
from the date the option was granted. The exercise price of all options equals the market price of the Company’s stock on the date 
of grant. Therefore, in accordance with APB No. 25, no compensation cost has been recognized for the plans. Had compensation
cost for the plans been determined based on the fair value of the options at the grant dates consistent with the method of SFAS No.
123, the Company’s net income and earnings per share for 2002 and 2000 would have been equal to pro forma amounts in the table
below since there were no options granted during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2000. The Company’s net income and
earnings per share for 2001 would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated in the table below. 

EARNINGS PER SHARE
NET INCOME BASIC DILUTED

2002
As reported $17,051 $2.12 $2.11
Pro forma 17,051 2.12 2.11

2001
As reported $15,418 $1.90 $1.89
Total stock option compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all options, net of related tax        (24)  (0.01) (0.01)
Pro forma $15,394 $1.89 $1.88

2000
As reported $13,859 $1.70 $1.69
Pro forma 13,859 1.70 1.69

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes options-pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions used for all grants; in 2001 dividend yield of 2.6%, expected volatility of 3.32%, risk-free
interest rate of 4.93%, and expected lives of 10 years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and changes during the
years ended on those dates is presented below.

2002

Number of Weighted-average
Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 147,163 $14.44
Exercised during the year 24,004 13.34
Forfeited during the year    2,273  16.29 
Outstanding at end of year 120,886 $14.62
Exercisable at end of year 120,886 $14.62

2001
Number of Weighted-average

Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 183,729 $14.29
Granted during the year 5,000 16.00
Exercised during the year 19,926 11.13
Forfeited during the year  21,640  16,56
Outstanding at end of year 147,163 $14.44
Exercisable at end of year 147,163 $14.44
Weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year $  7.50

2000
Number of Weighted-average

Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 199,842 $14.13
Exercised during the year 11,613 11.55
Forfeited during the year   4,500  14.47
Outstanding at end of year 183,729 $14.29
Exercisable at end of year 183,729 $14.29

The following table summarizes information related to options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Number Remaining Weighted-average
Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price

8,394 1.0 $13.38
52,500 4.0 12.33
50,492 6.0 16.74
4,500 7.0 18.38

   5,000 9.0  16.00
120,886 4.9 $14.62

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

2002 2001 2000

Net income, as reported $ 17,051 $ 15,418 $ 13,859
Weighted-average shares 8,049,629 8,123,928 8,164,188
Effect of dilutive employee stock options 47,841 33,558 14,617
Adjusted weighted-average shares and assumed conversion 8,097,470 8,157,486 8,178,805
Basic earnings per share $        2.12 $         1.90 $         1.70
Diluted earnings per share $        2.11 $         1.89 $         1.69
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All outstanding options at December 31, 2002 are in-the-money options as the exercise price is less than the average market price
of the common stock. Options to purchase 10,500 and 93,908 shares of common stock at an average exercise price of $18.75 and
$16.54 per share were outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, but were not included in the computation of
diluted earnings per share because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common stock.

19. INCOME TAXES

The current and deferred components of income tax expense were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Current:
Federal $7,618 $5,759 $4,836
State     268    241     219

7,886 6,000 5,055
Deferred:

Federal     539   1,162  1,188
$8,425 $7,162 $6,243

The actual expense differs from the expected tax expense computed by applying the applicable U.S. federal corporate income tax
rate to income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change, as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Computed tax expense $9,074 $7,903 $7,036
Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting from:

Tax exempt income (250) (342) (471)
State taxes, net of federal benefit 174 157 142
Income from life insurance (302) (305) (264)
Acquisition costs – 89 27
Low income housing credits (303) (303) (303)
Other 32 (37) 76

$8,425 $7,162 $6,243

Items which give rise to deferred income tax assets and liabilities and the tax effect of each are as follows:

2002 2001

Asset Liability Asset Liability

Allowance for possible losses on loans $5,358 $ – $4,643 $  –    
Allowance for investment losses 86 – 86 –
Capitalized costs 120 – 175 –
Pension and other benefits 860 – 760 –
Depreciation – 217 153 –
Deferred loan origination fees – 422 – 354
Deferred compensation and benefits 423 – 336 –
Unrealized gains on investments available for sale – 3,503 – 2,325
Unrealized gains on derivative instruments – 469 – –
Unrealized appreciation on loans held for sale 41 – 40 –
Interest receivable 231 – 229 –
Deposit premium 503 – 326 –
Mortgage servicing rights – 338 – 296
Other      20        –     113        –

$7,642 $4,949 $6,861 $2,975

The related income taxes have been calculated using a rate of 35%. No valuation allowance is deemed necessary for the deferred tax
asset, which is included in other assets.

20. RELATED PARTIES

The Company, in the normal course of business, has made loans to its subsidiaries, and certain officers, directors, and their
associated companies, under terms that are consistent with the Company’s lending policies and regulatory requirements. Changes 
in the composition of the board of directors or the group comprising executive officers result in additions to or deductions from
loans outstanding to directors, executive officers, or principal shareholders.

Loans to related parties that in aggregate exceed $60,000 were as follows:

2002 2001

Balance, January 1, $14,537 $14,298
Loans made/advanced and additions 2,461 5,328
Repayments and reductions   11,954   5,089
Balance, December 31 $  5,044 $14,537

In addition to the loans noted above, the Company had deposits at December 31, 2002 and 2001 from the same individuals of
$5,865,000 and $4,936,000, respectively.

21. LEGAL CONTINGENCIES

Various legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business, which in the opinion of management, are not
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit Related Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk, 
which are not reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Condition. These financial instruments include lending
commitments and letters of credit. These instruments involve varying degrees of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the Consolidated Statements of Condition.

The Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments to extend credit and conditional obligations as it does for 
on-balance sheet instruments, including requiring similar collateral or other security to support financial instruments with credit risk.
The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the customer is represented by the contractual amount 
of those instruments. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total amount does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company has not incurred any losses on its commitments in 2002, 2001 
or 2000. 

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative instruments as partial hedges against large fluctuations in interest rates. The Company uses interest
rate swap and floor instruments to hedge against potentially lower yields on the variable prime rate loan category in a declining rate
environment. If rates were to decline, resulting in reduced income on the adjustable rate loans, there would be an increased income
flow from the interest rate swap and floor instruments. The Company also uses cap instruments to partially hedge against increases
in short-term borrowing rates. If rates were to rise, resulting in an increased interest cost, there would be an increased income flow
from the cap instruments.

At least quarterly, all financial instruments are reviewed as part of the asset/liability management process. The financial instruments
are factored into the Company’s overall interest rate risk position. The Company regularly reviews the credit quality of the counterparty
from which the instruments have been purchased. 

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had $30 million (notional principal amount) in swap contracts ($20 million and $10 million)
in which the Company is hedging prime-based variable rate commercial loans to a fixed rate of 6.90%. The interest rate swap
agreements mature in 2005.
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23. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its bank subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the FRB, the
Comptroller of the Currency, and the FDIC. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can result in mandatory and possible
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements.

These capital requirements represent quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items
as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital classification is also subject to qualitative judgments by
its regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to maintain minimum amounts and
ratios of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital to average
assets (as defined). Management believes that, as of December 31, 2002, the Company and its bank subsidiaries meet all capital
requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2002, both bank subsidiaries were categorized by their supervisory regulatory agencies as well capitalized. To
be categorized as well capitalized, each bank subsidiary of the Company must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based,
and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events that management believes have changed the
banks’ respective capital categories.

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends depends on the receipt of dividends from its subsidiaries. The Company, as the
sole shareholder of its subsidiaries, is entitled to dividends from legally available funds when and as declared by each subsidiary’s
Board of Directors.

The Company’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.

To Be Well Capitalized
For Capital Under Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount > Ratio > Amount > Ratio >

As of December 31, 2002
Total Capital (To Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $110,605 13.8% $64,052 8.0% N/A
Camden National Bank 68,258 12.5% 43,532 8.0% $54,415 10.0%
UnitedKingfield Bank 30,301 12.2% 19,850 8.0% 24,812 10.0%

Tier 1 Capital (To Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $100,532 12.6% $32,026 4.0% N/A
Camden National Bank 61,426 11.3% 21,766 4.0% $32,649 6.0%
UnitedKingfield Bank 27,164 11.0% 9,925 4.0% 14,887 6.0%

Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets):
Consolidated $100,532 8.7% $46,088 4.0% N/A
Camden National Bank 61,426 8.0% 30,891 4.0% $38,614 5.0%
UnitedKingfield Bank 27,164 7.4% 14,683 4.0% 18,353 5.0%
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At December 31, 2001, the Company had $90 million (notional principal amount) in cap contracts ($20 million and $70 million) 
with strike rates of 7.50% and 7.00%, respectively, both of which matured in 2002. During 2001, the Company had $25 million
(notional principal amount) in callable interest rate swaps that were called. The Company also sold its interest in $10 million
(notional principal amount) of interest rate swaps and $10 million (notional principal amount) of floor contracts during 2001. 

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the contractual or notional amounts of credit related and derivative financial instruments were 
as follows:

2002 2001

Contractual
Commitments to extend credit $146,395 $124,261
Letters of credit 1,892 1,506

Notional
Swaps 30,000 –
Caps – 90,000

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments reported in the Consolidated Statements of Condition were as
follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2002 DECEMBER 31, 2001

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks  $  33,523 $  33,523 $  38,861 $  38,861
Securities available for sale 313,780 313,780 262,866 262,866
Securities held to maturity 995 995 944 944
Loans receivable 793,640 777,746 710,528 703,750
Interest receivable 5,778 5,778 5,054 5,054
Life insurance policies 18,579 18,579 17,713 17,713
Interest rate swaps 1,406 1,406 – –

Financial liabilities:
Deposits $850,134 $856,005 $763,568 $763,298
Borrowings from Federal Home Loan Bank 191,901 198,584 168,832 163,834
Other borrowed funds 46,960 46,960 42,011 42,011
Interest payable 3,111 3,111 3,058 3,058

The estimated fair values of the Company’s derivative financial instruments were as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Fair Value
Notional Contract Maturity Including 
Principal Date Date Accruals 

Interest Rate Swaps $20,000 1–Feb–02 1–Feb–05 $   937
 10,000 1–Feb–02 1–Feb–05    469
$30,000 $1,406

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Fair Value
Notional Contract Maturity Including 
Principal Date Date Accruals 

Interest Rate Caps $20,000 26–Jul–00 26–Jul–02 $  –
  70,000 23–Oct–00 23–Oct–02   –
$90,000 $  –
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Statements of Income
FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Operating Income
Dividend income from subsidiaries $ 7,997 $14,787 $  7,756
Fees from subsidiaries 9,641 7,999 6,300
Other income        23      12     70

Total operating income  17,661  22,798   14,126

Operating Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 6,162 4,537 3,698
Net occupancy 421 387 218
Furniture, equipment and data processing 1,065 893 886
Other operating expenses 2,160 2,275 1,558
Acquisition related expenses –     271     129

Total operating expenses 9,808   8,363     6,489
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 7,853 14,435 7,637

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 9,150     961     6,240
Income before income taxes 17,003 15,396 13,877

Income tax benefit (expense) 48         22        (18)
Net Income $17,051 $15,418 $13,859

Statements of Cash Flows
FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Operating Activities
Net income $17,051 $15,418 $13,859
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (9,150) (961) (6,240)
Depreciation and amortization 495 404 299
Decrease in obligation under ESOP and BRRP 6 5 6
Amortization of goodwill – 41 5
(Increase) decrease in amount receivable from subsidiaries 277 (292) 2,367
Increase in other assets (404) (203) (131)
Increase (decrease) in payables 455      645  (998)

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,730 15,057    9,167

Investing Activities
Purchase of premises and equipment (182) (1,707) (3,497)
Investment in Acadia Trust, N.A. (2,500)   (4,551)          –

Net cash used by investing activities (2,682)   (6,258)  (3,497)

Financing Activities
Proceeds from stock issuance under option plan 86 – –
Exercise and repurchase of stock options (114) (80) (22)
Acquisition of minority interest – 146 –
Purchase of treasury stock (919) (1,444) (394)
Dividends paid (5,550) (5,226) (5,150)
Proceeds from stock issuance under stock plan           –           –         31

Net cash used by financing activities (6,497) (6,604)   (5,535)

Net increase (decrease) in cash (449) 2,195 135
Cash at beginning of year  2,411 216        81
Cash at end of year $  1,962 $  2,411 $     216
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To Be Well Capitalized
For Capital Under Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount > Ratio > Amount > Ratio >

As of December 31, 2001
Total Capital (To Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $100,533 14.2% $56,650 8.0% N/A
Camden National Bank 58,979 12.4% 37,996 8.0% $47,495 10.0%
UnitedKingfield Bank 26,722 11.6% 18,444 8.0% 23,055 10.0%

Tier 1 Capital (To Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $91,624 12.9% $28,325 4.0% N/A
Camden National Bank 53,010 11.2% 18,998 4.0% $28,497 6.0%
UnitedKingfield Bank 23,814 10.3% 9,222 4.0% 13,833 6.0%

Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets):
Consolidated $91,624 8.7% $42,011 4.0% N/A
Camden National Bank 53,010 7.7% 27,733 4.0% $34,666 5.0%
UnitedKingfield Bank 23,814 6.8% 14,014 4.0% 17,517 5.0%

24. HOLDING COMPANY

Following are the condensed Statements of Condition, Income and Cash Flows for the Company.

Statements of Condition
DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001

Assets
Cash $    1,962 $ 2,411
Premises and equipment 5,719 6,034
Investment in subsidiaries:

Bank subsidiaries 103,367 90,266
Other subsidiaries 6,410 4,659

Amounts receivable from subsidiaries 15 292
Other assets     3,369    2,965

Total assets $120,842 $106,627

Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity
Amounts due to subsidiaries $       140 $          –
Accrued and other expenses 1,874 1,559
Shareholders’ equity   118,828  105,068

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $120,842 $106,627
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25. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

THREE MONTHS ENDED

Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
2002

Interest income $18,582 $18,661 $18,746 $18,583
Interest expense 6,779 7,027 7,136 6,773
Net interest income 11,803 11,634 11,610 11,810
Provision for loan losses 647 1,303 570 560
Income before income taxes 6,064 6,211 6,807 6,843
Applicable income taxes 2,004 2,003 2,235 2,183
Change in accounting for goodwill 449 – – –
Net income 3,611 4,208 4,572 4,660
Per common share:

Basic 0.44 0.53 0.57 0.58
Diluted 0.44 0.52 0.57 0.58

THREE MONTHS ENDED

Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
2001

Interest income $20,751 $20,552 $19,989 $18,578
Interest expense 10,483 9,423 8,469 7,314
Net interest income 10,268 11,129 11,520 11,264
Provision for loan losses 714 714 789 1,464
Income before income taxes 5,382 5,992 6,460 4,746
Applicable income taxes 1,762 1,989 1,980 1,431
Net income 3,620 4,003 4,480 3,315
Per common share:

Basic 0.44 0.50 0.55 0.41
Diluted 0.44 0.49 0.55 0.41

Lewiston




